
Academic Search, Inc. Contract No. 22-CC-011 
Project Name: Executive Search Consulting Services 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 

WHEREAS, Suffolk County Community College ("College") and Academic Search, Inc. 
("Contractor") entered into an Agreement on May 12, 2017 wherein Contractor agreed to provide 
executive search consulting services for Suffolk County Community College ("Services"); and 

WHEREAS, the College desires to extend the Agreement for an additional one (1) year upon the same 
terms, conditions and cost as the original Agreement, and to supplement certain provisions thereof. 

NOW, THEREFORE, ii is mutually understood and agreed by and between the parties hereto as 
follows: 

1) The Agreement shall be extended for one (1) year beginning May 1, 2018 through 
April 30, 2019; 

2) The certificate of liability insurance to be provided to the College, as required by paragraph 
4 of the Agreement, shall make reference to the above-indicated Contract No. and Project 
Name; 

3) College's Non-Discrimination Notice 

Suffolk County Community College does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, 
religion, creed, sex, age, marital status, gender identity or expression, sexual orientation, 
familial status, pregnancy, predisposing genetic characteristics, equal pay compensation­
sex, national origin, military or veteran status, domestic violence victim status, criminal 
conviction or disability in its admissions, programs and activities, or employment. This 
applies to all employees, students, applicants or other members of the College community 
(including, but not limited to, vendors and visitors). Grievance procedures are available to 
interested persons by contacting either of the Civil Rights Compliance 
Officers/Coordinators listed below and are located at 
www.sunysuffolk.edu/nondiscrimination. Retaliation against a person who files a 
complaint, serves as a witness, or assists or participates in the investigation of a complaint 
in any manner is strictly prohibited. 

The following persons have been designated to handle inquiries regarding the College's 
non-discrimination polices: 

Civil Rights Compliance Officers: 

Christina Vargas 
Chief Diversity Officer/Title IX Coordinator 
Ammerman Campus, NFL Bldg., Suite 230 
533 College Road, Selden, New York 11784 
vargasc@sunysuffolk.edu 
(631) 451-4950 
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Academic Search, Inc. Contract No. 22-CC-011 
Project Name: Executive Search Consulting Services 

or 

Dionne Walker-Belgrave 
Affirmative Action Officer/Deputy Title IX Coordinator 
Ammerman Campus, NFL Bldg., Suite 230 
533 College Road, Selden, New York 11784 
walkerd@sunysuffolk.edu 
(631) 451-4051; 

4) All other terms and conditions of the original Agreement not inconsistent herewith shall 
remain in full force and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment as of the latest date written 
below. 

Academic Search, Inc. 
FID # 20-5120646 

Date: 

Approved as to Legality: 
Suffolk County Community College 

By: 
Lg~is J. P~1izzo ,9/.JCdl- 5. d 'u:,NdO,e_ 

,@ College't3eneral Counsel/ E>1eet11ioe V.f'. 
A 

Date: 1 I i·z., /'< 
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Suffolk County Community College 

Date: 

Approved: 
Suffolk County Community College 

By: 

Vice Preside t for Business and 
and Financial Affairs 

Date:, __ '1_~_/J_-1_8 ______ _ 
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Academic Search, Inc. Contract No. 22-CC-011 
Executive Search Consulting Services 

CONSUL TING SERVICES AGREEMENT 

This Agreement ("Agreement") is between Suffolk County Community College ("College"), 
having its principal office at 533 College Road, Selden, New York 11784-2899, a chartered community college 
(pursuant to New York State Education Law) under the sponsorship of the County of Suffolk ("County"), a 
municipal corporation of the State of New York, and 

Academic Search, Inc. ("Contractor"), a Delaware corporation having Its principal place of business 
at 1015 18th Street NW, Suite 510, Washington, DC 20036. 

The parties hereto desire for Contractor to provide executive search consulting services for Suffolk 
County Community College ("Services"). 

Term of Agreement: May 1, 2017 through April 30, 2018, with four (4) additional options to renew at 
the sole and absolute discretion of the College. 

Total Cost of Agreement: In accordance with the Fee Schedule set forth herein at Exhibit E, page 22. 

Terms and Conditions: Set forth in Exhibits A through G, attached hereto and made a part of this 
Agreement. · 

In Witness Whereof, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the latest date written below. 

Academic Search, Inc. 
FID # 20-5120646 

Date: 

Approved as to Legality: 
Suffolk County Community College 

By:--/'~'~~~--t..)..,fi.'ll..:..._. -

Louis J. Petrizzo 
College General Counsel 

Date: ___ o"---s_j,_· _1 ,_,_/_, 1 ___ _ 

· Suffolk County Community College 

.President 

Date: 

Approved: 
Suffolk County Community College 

By: -±Ji-:, :-:-:~,...;./,~----­
/Gail Vizzini 
' Vice President for Business and Financial 
Affairs 

Date: _S_,/'-'-1:..i./ /_t _1 ____ _ 
r1 
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Academic Search, Inc. Contract No. 22-CC-011 
Executive Search Consulting Services 

List of Exhibits 

Exhibit A 
General Terms and Conditions 

1. Contractor Responsibilities 
2. Term and Termination 
3. Indemnification 
4. Insurance 
5. lndepl:lndent Contractor 
6. Severability 
7. Merger; No Oral Changes 
8. Set-Off Rights 
9. Non-Discrimination in Services 
10. Nonsectarian Declaration · 
1'1. Governing Law 
12. No Implied Waiver 
13. . Conflicts of Interest 
14. Cooperation on Claims 
15. Confidentiality 
16. Assignment and Subcontracting 
17. No Intended Third-Party Beneficiaries 
18. Certification as to Relationships 
19. Publications and Publicity 
20. Copyrights and Patents 

Exhibit B 
Suffolk County Legislative Requirements 

1. Contractor'sNendor's Public Disclosure Statement 
2. Living Wage Law 
3. Use of County Resources to Interfere with Collective Bargaining Activities 

Local Law No. 26-2003 
4. Lawful Hiring of Employees Law 
5. Gratuities 
6. Prohibition Against Contracting with Corporations that Reincorporate Overseas 
7. Child Sexual Abuse Reporting Policy · 
8. Non Responsible Bidder 
9. Use of Funds in Prosecution of Civil Actions Prohibited 
10. Suffolk County Local Laws 

Page2 



' 

Academic Search, Inc. Contract No. 22-CC-011 
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ExhibitC 
Notices and Contact Persons 

1. Notices Relating to Payments, Reports, or Other Submissions 
2. Notices Relating to Insurance 
3. Notices Relating to Termination and/or Litigation 

ExhibitD 
Description of Services 

Exhibit E 
Payment Terms and Conditions 

1. General Payment Terms 
· 2. Agreement Subject to Appropriation of Funds 

3. Limit of College's Obligations 
4. Specific Payment Terms and Conditions 

Exhibit F 
College's Request for Proposals 

ExhibitG 
Contractor's Proposal 
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Academic Search, Inc. Contract No. 22-CC-011 
Executive Search Consulting Services 

Exhibit A 
General Terms and Conditions 

Whereas, the College issued a Request for Proposals ("RFP"), which was advertised on March 23, 2017; and 

Whereas, the Contractor submitted a proposal in response to such RFP on April 6, 2017; and 

Whereas, the College has selected the Contractor to provide the services as set forth herein; and 

Now, therefore, in consideration of the mutual provisions and covenants hereafter set forth, the parties hereto 
agree as follows: 

1. Contractor Responsibilities 

a. Services 

Contractor shall provide the Services described in Exhibit D, entitled "Description of Services." 

b. Qualifications and Licenses 

To the extent applicable, Contractor specifically represents and warrants that it has and shall 
possess, and that, to the extent applicable, its employees, agents and subcontractors have and 
shall possess, the required education, knowledge, experience and character necessary to 
qualify them individually for the particular duties they perform and that Contractor has and shall 
have, and, to the extent applicable, its employees, agents and subcontractors have and shall 
have; all required authorizations, certificates, certifications, registrations, licenses, permits or 
other approvals required by the State, County or other authorities for the Services provided. 

2. Term and Termination 

a. Term 

This Agreement shall cover the period set forth on page one of this Agreement, unless sooner 
terminated as provided below. Upon receipt of a Termination Notice, as that term is defined 
below, Contractor shall promptly discontinue all Services affected, unless otherwise directed by 
the Termination Notice. 

b. Termination for Cause 

i. A failure to maintain the amount and types of insurance required by this Agreement may 
result in immediate termination of this Agreement, in the sole discretion of the College. 

ii. Failure to comply with federal, state or local laws, rules, regulations, or College or 
County policies or directives may result in immediate termination of this Agreement, in 
the sole discretion of the College. 

iii. If Contractor becomes bankrupt or insolvent or falsifies its records or reports, or misuses 
its funds from whatever source, the College may terminate this Agreement in whole or in 
part, effective immediately, or, at its option, effective at a later date specified in the 
notice of such termination to Contractor. 
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Academic Search, Inc. Contract No. 22-CC-011 
Executive Search Consulting Services 

Iv. In the event of a failure on the part of Contractor to observe any of the other terms and 
conditions of this Agreement, this Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part in 
writing by the College provided that no such termination shall be effective unless 
Contractor is given five (5) calendar days' (or longer, at the College's option) written 
riotice of intent to terminate (Notice of Intent to Terminate), delivered in accordance with 
the Exhibit en@ed "Notices and Contact Persons." During such five (5) day period, (or 
longer, at the College's option) Contractor will be given an opportunity for consultation 
with the College and an opportunity to cure all failures of its obligations prior to 
termination by the College. In the event that Contractor has not cured all its failures to 
fulfill its obligations to the satisfaction of the College by the end of the (5) day period (or 
longer, at the College's option), the College may issue a written termination notice 
(TeriTlination Notice), effective immediately. 

d. Termination for Emergencies 

An emergency or other condition involving possible loss of life, threat to health and safety, 
destruction of property or other condition deemed to be dangerous, In the sole discretion of the 
College,· may result in immediate termination of this Agreement, in whole or in part. 

e. Termination for Convenience 

The College shall have the right to terminate this Agreement at any time and for any reason 
deemed to be in its best interest, provided that no such termination shall be effective unless 
Contractor is given thirty (30) calendar days' prior written notice (Termination Notice). In such 
event of termination, the College shall pay Contractor for the services rendered through the date 
of termination. 

f. Payments upon Termination 

i. Upon receiving a Termination Notice, Contractor shall promptly discontinue all services 
affected unless otherwise directed by the Termination Notice. 

ii. The College shall be released from any and all responsibilities and obligations arising 
from the services provided in accordance with this Agreement, effective as of the dale of 
termination, but the College shall be responsible for payment of all claims for services 
provided and costs incurred by Contractor prior to termination of this Agreement, that are 
pursuant to, and after Contracto~s compliance with, the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement. 

iii. Upon termination, Contractor agrees to promptly reimburse to the College the balance of 
any funds advanced to Contractor by the College. Upon termination, any funds paid to 
Contractor by the College which were used by Contractor in a manner that failed to 
comply with the terms and conditions of this Agreement must be promptly reimbursed. If 
there is no response or If satisfactory repayments are not made, the College may recoup 
such payments from any amounts due or becoming due to Contractor from the College 
under this 
Agreement or otherwise. The provisions of this subparagraph shall survive the expiration 
or termination of the Agreement. 
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Academic Search, Inc. Contract No. 22-CC-011 
Executive Search Consulting Services 

3. Indemnification 

a. 

b. 

General 

Contractor agrees that it shall protect, indemnify and hold harmless the College and/or County 
· and their officers, officials, employees, contractors, agents and other persons from and against 

all liabilities, fines, penalties, actions, damages, claims, demands, judgments, losses, costs, 
expenses, suits or actions and reasonable attorneys' fees, arising out of the acts or omissions 

. or the negligence of Contractor in connection with the services described or referred to in this 
Agreement. Contractor shall defend the College and /or County and their officers, officials, 
· employees, contractors, agents and other persons in any suit, including appeals, or at the 
College and /or County's option, pay reasonable attorney's fees for defense of any such suit 
arising out of the acts or omissions or negligence of Contractor, its officers, officials, employees, 
subcontractors or agents, if any, in connection with the services described or referred to in this 
Agreement. 

Federal Copyright Act 

Contractor hereby represents and warrants that it will not infringe upon any copyrighted work or 
material in accordance with the Federal Copyright Act during the performance of this Contract. 
Furthermore, Contractor agrees that it shall protect, indemnify and hold harmless the College 
and/or County and their officers, officials, employees, contractors, agents and other persons 
from and against all liabilities, fines, penalties, actions, damages, claims, demands, judgments, 
losses, costs, expenses, suits or actions and reasonable attorney's fees, arising out of the acts. 
or omissions or the negligence of Contractor in connection with the services described or 
referred to in this Agreement. Contra.ctor shall defend the College and/or County and their 
officers, officials, employees, contractors, agents and other persons in any suit, including 
appeals, or, at the College and/or County's option, pay reasonable attorney's fees for defense of 
any such suit arising out of the acts or omissions or negligence of Contractor, its officers,. 
officials, employees, subcontractors, lessees, licensees, invitees or agents, if any, in connection 
with the services described or referred to in this Agreement. 

4. Insurance 

a. Contractor agrees to procure, pay the entire premium for and maintain throughout the term of this 
Agreement, insurance in amounts and types specified by the College and as may be mandated and 
increased from lime to lime. Contractor agrees to require that all of tts subcontractors, in connection 
with work performed for Contractor related to this Agreement, procure, pay the entire premium for 
and maintain throughout the term of this Agreement insurance in amounts and types equal to that 
specified by the College for Contractor. Unless otherwise specified by the College and agreed to by 
Contractor, in writing, such insurance shall be as follows: 

i. Commercial General Liability insurance, including contractual liability coverage, in an 
amount not less than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) per occurrence for bodily 
injury and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) per occurrence for property damage. 

ii. Automobile Liability insurance (if any vehicles are used by Contractor in the 
performance of this Agreement) in an amount not less than Five Hundred Thousand 
Dollars ($500,000.00) per person, per accident, for bodily injury and not less than One 
Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000.00) for property damage per occurrence. 

Page& 

' 

mattiak
Text Box



' 

Academic Search, Inc. Contract No. 22-CC-011 
Executive Search Consulting Services 

Iii. Worker's Compensation and Employer's Liability insurance in compliance with all 
applicable New York State laws and regulations and Disability Benefits insurance, if 
required by law. Contractor shall furnish to the College, prior to its execution of this 
Agreement, the (!ocumentation required by the Slate of New York Workers' 
Compensation Board of coverage or exemption from coverage pursuant to §§57 and 
220 of the Workers' Compensation Law. In accordance with General Municipal Law 
§108, this Agreement shall be void and of no effect unless Contractor shall provide and 
maintain coverage during the term of this Agreement for the benefit of such employees 
as are required to be covered by the provisions of the Workers' Compensation Law. 

iv. Professional·Liability insurance in an amount not less than Two Million Dollars 
($2,000,000.00) on either a per occurrence or claims made coverage basis. 

b. All policies providing such coverage shall be issued by insurance companies with an A.M. Best 
rating of A- or better. 

c. Contractor shall furnish to the College Declaration Pages for each such policy of insurance and 
upon request, a true and certified original copy of each such policy, evidencing compliance with 
the aforesaid insurance requirements. In the case of commercial general liability insurance, 
the College and the County of Suffolk shall be named as additional insureds and 
Contractor shall furnish a Declaration Page and endorsement page evidencing the College and 
the County's status as additional insureds on the policy. 

d. Any such Declaration Page, certificate of insurance, policy, endorsement page or other· 
evidence of insurance supplied to the College shall provide for the College and the County of 
Suffolk to be notified in writing thirty (30) days prior to any cancellation, nonrenewal or material 
change in the policies. Such Declaration Page, certificate of insurance, policy, endorsement 
page, other evidence of insurance and any notice of nonrenewal or material change shall be 
mailed to the College and the County at the addresses set forth In this Agreement in the exhibit 
entitled "Notices and Contact Persons" or at such other address of which the College and/or the 
County shall have . 
given Contractor notice in writing. 

e; In the event Contractor shall fail to provide the Declaration Page, certificate of insurance, policy, 
endorsement page or other evidence of insurance, or fails to maintain any insurance required by 
this Agreement, the Coliege and/or the County may, but shall not be required to, obtain such 
policies and deduct the cost thereof from payments due Contractor under this Agreement or any 
other agreement between the College and/or the County and Contractor. 

5. Independent Contractor 

It is expressly agreed that Contractor's status hereunder is that of an independent contractor. Neither 
Contractor, nor any person hired by Contractor shall be considered employees of the College and/or 
the County for any purpose. 

6. Severability 

It is expressly agreed that if any term or provision of this Agreement, or the application thereof to any 
person or circumstance, shall be held invalid or unenforceable lo any extent, the remainder of this 
Agreement, or the application of such term or provision to persons or circumstances other than those 
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Academic Search, Inc. Contract No. 22-CC-011 
Executive Search Consulting Services 

as to which ii Is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby, and every other term and 
provision of this Agreement shall be valid and shall be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

7. Merger; No Oral Changes 

It is expressly agreed that this'Agreement represents the entire agreement of the parties and that all 
previous understandings are merged in this Agreement. No modification of this Agreement shall be 
valid unless written in the form of an Amendment and executed by both parties. 

8. Set-Off Rights 

The College shali have all of its common law, equitable, and statutory rights of set-off. These rights 
shall include, but not be limited to, the College's option to withhold, for the purposes of set•off, any 
moneys due to Contractor under this contract up to any amounts due and owing to the College with 
regard to this contract and/or any other contract with the College, including any contract for a term 

, commencing prior to the term of .this contract, plus ·any amounts due and owing to the College for any 
other reason including, without limitation, tax delinquencies, fee delinquencies or monetary penalties 
relative thereto. The College shall exercise its set-off rights in accordance with normal College 
practices including, in cases of set-off pursuant to an audit, the finalization of such audit by the 
College, its representatives, and only after legal consultation with the College General Counsel. 

9. Non-Discrimination in Services 

During the performance of this Agreement: 

a. Contractor shall not, on the grounds of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, disability, 
sexual orientation, military status or marital status: 

i. deny any individual any services or other benefits provided pursuant to this Agreement; 
or 

ii. provide any services or other benefits to an individual that are different, or are provided 
in a different manner, from those provided to others pursuant to this Agreement; or 

iii. subject an individual to segregation or separate treatment in any matter related to the 
individual's receipt of any service(s} or other benefits provided pursuant to this 
Agreement; or · 

iv. restrict an individual in any way in the enjoyment of any advantage or privilege enjoyed 
by others receiving any services or other benefits provided pursuant to this Agreement; 
or 

v. treat an individual differently from others in determining whether or not the individual 
satisfies any eligibility or other requirements or condition which individuals must meet in 
order to receive any aid, care, service(s} or other benefits provided pursuant to this 
Agreement. 

b. Contractor shall not utilize criteria or methods of administration which have the effect of 
subjecting individuals to discrimination because of their race, creed, color, national origin, sex, 
age, disability, sexual orientation, military status or marital status, or have the effect of defeating 
or substantially impairing accomplishment of the objectives of this Agreement in respect to 
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individuals of a particular race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, disability, sexual 
orientation, military status or marital status, in determining: 

I. · the types of service(s) or other benefits to be provided, or 

ii. the class of individuals to whom, or the situations in which, such service(s) or other 
benefits will be provided; or 

Iii. the class of individuals to be afforded an opportunity to receive services. 

10.. Nonsectarian Declaration 

Contractor agrees that all services performed under this Agreement are secular in nature, that no funds 
received pursuant to this Agreement will be used for sectarian purposes or to further the advancement 
of any religion, and that no services performed under this program will discriminate on the basis of 
religious belief. 

11. Governing Law 

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New 
York, without regard to conflict of laws. Venues shall be designated in Suffolk County, New York or the 
United States District Court for the Eastern District of New York. 

12. No Implied Waiver 

No waiver shall be inferred from any failure or forbearance of the College to enforce any provision of 
this Agreement in any particular instance or instances, but the same shall otherwise remain in full force · 
and effect notwithstanding any such failure or forbearance. 

13. Conflicts of Interest . • 

a. Contractor agrees that it will not during the term of this Agreement engage in any activity that is 
contrary to and/or in conflict with the goals and purposes of the College and/or the County. 

b. Contractor is charged with the duty to disclose to the College and/or the County the existence of 
any such adverse interests,. whether existing or potential. This duty shall continue so long as 
Contractor is retained on behalf of the College. The determination as to whether or when a 
conflict exists or may potentially exist shall ultimately be made by the College General Counsel 
and the County Attorney after full disclosure is obtained. 

14. Cooperation on Claims 

Each of the parties hereto agrees to render diligently to the other party, without additional 
compensation, any and all cooperation, that may be required to defend the other party, its employees 
and designated representatives against any claim, demand or action that may be brought against the 
other party, its employees or designated representatives in connection with this Agreement. 

15. Confidentiality 

Any records, reports or other documents of the College and/or the County used by Contractor pursuant 
to this Agreement or any documents created as a part of this Agreement shall remain the property of 
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the College and/or the County and shall be kept confidential in accordance with applicable laws, rules 
and regulations. 

16. Assignment and Subcontracting 

a. Contractor shall not assign, transfer, convey, sublet, or otherwise dispose of this Agreement, or 
any of its right, title or interest therein, or tts power to execute the Agreement, or assign all or 
any portion of the monies that may be due or become due hereunder, to any other person or 
corporation, without the prior consent in writing of the . 
College, and any attempt to do any of the foregoing wtthout such consent shall be of no effect. 

b. Contractor shall not enter into subcontracts for any of the work contemplated under this 
Agreement without obtaining prior written approval of the College. Such subcontracts shall be 
subject to all of the provisions of this Agreement and to such other conditions and provisions as 
the College may deem necessary, provided, however, that notwithstanding the foregoing, 
unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, such prior written approval shall not be required 
for the purchase of articles, supplies, equipment and services which are incidental to, but 
necessary for, the performance of the work required under this Agreement. No approval by the 
College of any subcontract shall provide for the incurrence of any obligation by the College in 
addition to the total agreed upon price. Contractor shall be responsible for the performance of 
any subcontractor for the delivery of service. · 

17. No Intended Third-Party Beneficiaries 

This Agreement is entered into solely for the benefit of College, County and Contractor. No third party 
shall be deemed a beneficiary of this Agreement, and no third party shall have the right to make any 
claim or assert any right under this Agreement. 

18. Certification as to Relationships 

The parties to this Agreement hereby certify that, other than the funds provided in this Agreement and 
other valid Agreements with the College and/or the County, there is no known relationship within the 
third degree of consanguinity, life partner, or business, commercial, economic, or financial relationship 
between the parties, the signatories to this Agreement, and any partners, members, directors, or 
shareholders of five percent (5%) (or more) of any party to this Agreement. 

19. Publications and Publicity 

a. Contractor shall not issue or publish any book, article, report or other publication related to the 
Services provided pursuant to this Agreement without first obtaining written prior approval from 
the College. Any such printed matter or other publication shall contain the following statement in 
clear and legible print: 

"This publication is fully or partially funded by Suffolk County Community College and the 
County of Suffolk." 

b. The College shall have the right of prior approval of press releases and any other information 
provided to the media, in any form, concerning the Services provided pursuant to this 
Agreement. 
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20. Copyrights and Patents 

a. Copyrights 

If the work of Contractor under this Agreement should result in the production of original books, 
manuals, films or other materials for which a copyright may be granted, Contractor may secure 
copyright protection. However, the College reserves, and Contractor hereby gives to the 
College, and to any other municipality or government agency or body designated by the 
College, a royalty-free, nonexclusive license to produce, reproduce, publish, translate or 
otherwise use any such materials. 

b. Patents 

If Contractor under this Agreement makes any discovery or invention in the course of or as a 
result of work performed under this Agreement, Contractor may apply for and secure for Itself 
patent protection. However, the College reserves, and Contractor hereby gives to the College, 
and to any other municipality or government agency or body designated by the College, a 
royalty-free, nonexclusive license ·to produce or otherwise use any item so discovered or 
patented. 

End of Text for Exhibit A 
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ExhibitB 
Suffolk County Legislative Requirements 

1. Contractor'sNendor's Public Disclosure Statement 

Contractor represents and warrants that ii has filed with the Comptroller of Suffolk County the verified 
public disclosure statement required by Suffolk County Administrative Code Article V, Section A5-7 and 
shall file an update of such statement with the Comptroller on or before the 31st day of January in.each 
year of this Agreement's duration. Contractor acknowledges that such filing is a material, contractual 
and statutory duly and that the failure to file such statement shall constitute a material breach of this 
Agreement, for which the College shall be entitled, upon a determination that such breach has 
occurred, to damages, in addition to all other legal remedies, of fifteen percent (15%) of the amount of 
the Agreement. 

Required Form: 

2. Living Wage Law 

Suffolk County Form SCEX 22; entitled "Contractor'sNendor's Public Disclosure 
Statement'' 

This Agreement is subject to the Living Wage Law of the County of Suffolk. The law requires that, 
unless specific exemptions apply, all employers (as defined) under service contracts and recipients of 
County financial assistance (as defined) shall provide payment of a minimum wage to employees as set 
forth in !he Living Wage Law. Such rate shall be adjusted annually pursuant lo the terms of the Suffolk 
County Living Wage Law of the County of Suffolk. Under the provisions of the Living Wage Law, the 
County shall have the authority, under appropriate circumstances, lo terminate this Agreement and to 
seek other remedies as set forth therein, for violations of this Law. 

Contractor represents and warrants that it has read and shall comply with the requirements of Suffolk 
County Code Chapter 347, Suffolk County Local Law No. 12-2001, the Living Wage Law. 

Required Forms: Suffolk County Living Wage Form LW-1; entltled "Suffolk County Department of · 
Labor - Living Wage Unit Notice of Application for County Compensation 
(Contract)" 

Suffolk County Living Wage Form LW-38; enlitl.ed "Suffolk County Department of 
Labor - Living Wage Unit Living Wage Certification/Declaration - Subject To 
Audit" 
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3. Use of County Resources to Interfere with Collective Bargaining Activities 
Local Law No. 2.6-2003 

Contractor represents and warrants that it has read and is familiar with the requirements of Chapter 
466, Article 1 of the Suffolk County Local Laws, "Use of County Resources to Interfere with Collective 
Bargaining Activities." County Contractors (as defined) shall comply with all requirements of Local Law 
No. 26-2003 including the following prohibitions: 

a. Contractor shall not use County funds to assist, promote, or deter union organizing. 

b. No Countyfunds shall be used to reimburse Contractor for any costs incurred to assist, 
promote, or deter union organizing. · 

c. The County of Suffolk shall not use County funds to assist, promote, or deter union organizing. 

d. No employer shall use County property to hold a meeting with employees or supervisors if the 
purpose of such meeting is to assist, promote, or deter union organizing. 

If Contractor services are performed on County property, Contractor must adopt a reasonable access 
agreement, a neutrality agreement, fair communication agreement, nonintimidation agreement and a 
majority authorization card agreement. 

If Contractor services are for the provision of human services and such services are not to be 
performed on County property, Contractor must adopt, at the least, a neutrality agreement. 

Under the provision:s of Local Law No. 26-2003, the County shall have the authority, under appropriate 
circumstances, to terminate this Agreement and to seek other remedies as set forth therein, for 
violations of this Law. 

Required Form: Suffolk County Labor Law Form DOL-L01; entitled "Suffolk County Department 
of Labor - Labor Mediation Unit Union Organizing Certification/Declaration ~ 
Subject to Audit' 

4. Lawful Hiring of Employees Law 

This Agreement is subject to the Lawful Hiring of Employees Law of the County of Suffolk (Local Law 
52-2006). It provides that all covered employers, (as defined), and the owners thereof, as the case 
may be, that ere recipients of compensation from the County through any grant, loan, subsidy, funding, 
appropriation, payment, tax incentive, contract, subcontract, license agreement, lease or other financial 
compensation agreement issued by the County or an awarding agency, where such compensation is 
one hundred percent (100%) funded by the County, shall submit a completed sworn affidavit (under 
penalty of perjury) certifying that they have complied, in good faith, with the requirements of Title 8 of 
the United States Code Section 1324a with respect to the hiring of covered employees (as defined) and 
with respect to the alien and nationality status of the owners thereof. The affidavit shall be executed by 
an authorized representative of the covered employer or owner, as the case may be; shall be part of 
any executed contract, subcontract, license agreement, lease or other financial compensation 
agreement with the County; and shall be made available to the public upon request. 

All contractors and subcontractors (as defined) of covered employers, and the owners thereof, as the 
case may be, that are assigned to perform work in connection with a County contract, subcontract, 
license agreement, lease or other financial compensation agreement issued by the County or awarding 
agency, where such compensation is one hundred percent (100%) funded by the County, shall submit 
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to the covered employer a completed sworn affidavit (under penalty of perjury) certifying that they have 
complied, in .good faith, with the requirements of Title 8 of the United States Code Section 1324a with 
respect to the hiring of covered employees and with respect to the alien and nationality status of the 
owners thereof, as the case may be. The affidavit shall be executed by an authorized repres~ntative of 
the contractor, subcontractor, or owner, as the case may be; shall be part of any executed contract, 
subcontract, license agreement, lease or other financial compensation agreement between the covered 
employer and the County; ahd shall be made available to the public upon request. 

An updated affidavit.shall be submitted by each such employer, owner, contractor and subcontractor no 
later than January 1 of each year for the duration of any contract and upon the renewal or amendment 
of the contract, and whenever a new contractor or subcontractor is hired under the terms of the 
contract. 

Contractor acknowledges that such filings are a material, contractual and statutory duty and that the 
failure to file any such statement shall constitute a material breach of this agreement. 

Under the provisions of the Lawful Hiring of Employees Law, the County shall have the authority to 
terminate this Agreement for violations of this Law and to seek other remedies available under the law. 

This Agreement is subject to the Lawful Hiring of Employees Law of the County of Suffolk, Suffolk 
County Code Chapter 234, as more fully set forth in the Exhibit collectively referred to as the "Suffolk 
County Legislative Requirements." In accordance with this law, Contractor or employer, as the case 
may be, and any subcoritractor or owner, as the case may be, agree to maintain the documentation 
mandated to be kept by this law on site at all times. Contractor or employer, as the case may be, and 
any subcontractor or owner, as the case may be, further agree that employee sign-in sheets and 
register/log books shall be kept on site at all times during working hours and all covered employees, as 
defined in the law, shall be required to sign such sign in sheets/register/log books to indicate their 
presence on the site during such working hours. 

Contractor represents and warrants that it has read, is in compliance with, and shall comply with the 
requirements of Suffolk County Code Chapter 234, Suffolk County Local Law No. 52-2006, the Lawful 
Hiring of Employees Law. 

Required Forms: Suffolk County Lawful Hiring of Employees Law Form LHE-1; entitled "Suffolk 
County Department of Labor-''Notice Of Application To Certify Compliance With 
Federal Law (8 U.S.C. SECTION 1324a) With Respect To Lawful Hiring of 
Employees" · 

5. Gratuities 

"Affidavit Of Compliance With The Requirements Of 8 U.S.C. Section 1324a With 
Respect To Lawful Hiring Of Employees" Form LHE-2. 

Contractor represents and warrants that it has not offered or given any gratuity to any official, employee 
or agent of Suffolk County or New York State or of any political party, with the purpose or intent of 
securing an agreement or securing favorable treatment with respect to the awarding or amending of an 
agreement or the making of any determinations with respect to the performance of an agreement, and 
that the signer of this Agreement has read and is familiar with the provisions of Local Law No. 32-1980 
of Suffolk County (Chapter 386 of the Suffolk County Code). 
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6. Prohibition Against Contracting with Corporations that Reincorporate Overseas · 

Contractor represents that it is in compliance with Suffolk County Administrative Code Article IV, §§A4-
13 and A4-14, found in Suffolk County Local Law No. 20-2004, entitled "A Local Law To Amend Local 
Law No. 5-1993, To Prohibit The County of Suffolk From Contracting With Corporations That 
Reincorporate Overseas." Such law provides that no contract for consulting services or goods and 
services shall be awarded by the County to a business previously incorporated within the U.S.A. that 
has reincorporated outside the U.S.A. 

7. Child Sexual Abuse Reporting Policy 

Contractor agrees to comply with Chapter 577, Article IV, of the Suffolk County Code, entitled "Child 
Sexual Abuse Reporting Policy," as now in effect or amended hereafter or of any other Suffolk County 
Local Law that may become applicable during the term of this Agreement with regard to child sexual 
abuse reporting policy. 

8. Non Responsible Bidder 

Contractor represents and warrants that it has read and is familiar with the provisions of Suffolk County 
Code Chapter 143, Article II, §§143-5 through 143-9. Upon signing this Agreement, Contractor certifies 
that he, she, ii, or they have not been convicted of a criminal offense within the last ten (10) years. The 
term "conviction" shall mean a finding of guilty after a trial or a plea of guilty to an offense covered 
under the provision of Section 143-5 of the Suffolk County Code under "Nonresponsible Bidder." 

9. Use of Funds· In Prosecution of Civil Actions Prohibited 

Pursuant to the Suffolk County Code Section §590-3, Contractor represents that ii shall not use any of 
the moneys received under this Agreement, either directly or indirectly, in connection with the 
prosecution of any civil action against the County of Suffolk or any of its programs, funded by the 
County, in part or in whole, in any jurisdiction or any judicial or administrative forum. 

10. Suffolk County Local Laws 

Suffolk County Local Laws, Rules and Regulations can be found on the Suffolk County website at 
http://suffolkcountyny.gov/. 

End of Text for Exhibit B 
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Academic Search, Inc. Contract No. 22-CCs011 
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Exhibit C 
Notices and Contact Persons 

1. Notices Relating to Payments, Reports, or Other Submissions 

Any communication, notice, claim for payment, report, or other submission necessary or required to be 
made by the parties regarding this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be given to the College or 
Contractor or their designated representative at the following addresses or at such other address that 
may be specified in writing by the parties and must be delivered as follows: 

For the College 

Gail Vizzini 
Vice President for Business and Financial Affairs 
Suffolk County Community College 

. 533 College Road, NFL 232 
Selden, NY 11784-2899 

For Contractor 

At the address set forth on page one of this Agreement, attention of the person who executed 
this Agreement or such other designee as the parties may agree in writing. 

2. Notices Relating to Insurance 

Any notice relating to insurance necessary or required to be made by the parties regarding this 
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be given to the College or Contractor or their designated 
representative at the following addresses or at such other address that may be specified in writing by 
the parties and must be delivered as follows: 

For the College 

Louis J. Petrizzo 
College General Counsel 
Office of Legal Affairs 
Suffolk County Community College 
533 College Road, NFL230 
Selden, NY 11784-2899 

For Contractor 

At the Address set forth on page one of this Agreement, attention of the person who 
executed this Agreement or such other designee as the parties may agree in writing. 

3. Notices Relating to Tennination andfor Litigation 

In the event Contractor receives a notice or claim or becomes a party (plaintiff, petitioner, defendant, 
respondent, third party complainant, third party defendant) to a lawsuit or any legal proceeding related 
to this Agreement, Contractor shall immediately deliver to the College General Counsel and the County 
Attorney, at the addresses set forth below, copies of all papers filed by or against Contractor. 
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Any communication or notice regarding termination shall be in writing arid shall be given to the College 
or Contractor or their designated representative at the following addresses or at such other addresses 
that may be specified in writing by the parties and must be delivered as follows: 

For the College and the County: 

Louis J. Petrizzo 
College General Counsel 
Office of Legal Affairs 
Suffolk County Commun~y College 
533 College Road, NFL 230 
Selden, NY 11784-2899 

and 

Suffolk County Attorney 
Suffolk County Department of Law 
H. Lee Dennison Building 
100 Veterans Memorial Highway 
Hauppauge, New York 11788 

For Contractor: 

At the address set forth on page one of this Agreement, attention to the person who executed 
this Agreement or such other designee as the parties may agree in writing. 

Notices for all parties (except those related to termination or litigation) should be delivered by first class 
and certified mail, return receipt requested, In a postpaid envelope or by courier service, or by fax or by 
email. 

Notices related to termination or litigation should be delivered by first class and certified mail, return 
· receipt requested, in a postpaid envelope or by nationally recognized courier service or personally and 
by first class mail. 

Notices shall be deemed to have been duly delivered: (i) if mailed, upon the seventh business day after 
the mailing thereof; or (ii) if by nationally recognized overnight courier service, upon the first business 
day subsequent to the transmittal thereof; or (iii) if personally, pursuant to New York Civil Practice Law 
and Rules Section 311; or (iv) if by fax or email, upon the transmittal thereof. "Business Day" shall be 
defined as any day except a Saturday, a Sunday, or any day in which commercial banks are required or 
authorized to close in Suffolk County, New York. 

Each party shall give prompt written notice to the other party of the appointment of successor(s) to the 
designated contact person(s) or his or her designated successor(s). 

End of Text for Exhibit C 
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i. scope of.Work 

Exhibit D 
Description of Sarvices 

Contract No. 22-CC.011 

. Our standard search process Is built upon years of experience, and Is comprised of the 
following six steps, which we will tailor to the speolfic needs, goals, and prooess. of 
Suffolk County Community College. 

1) Organigatlon of the Seanm: A key determlnani of a succ;essful search _is the . 
thoughiful organization of the saardh process. Academic Search workll side-by-side with 
the college to set ipeclifc goals and develop operating guidelines to help structure the 
overall proces11. · · · 

21 Analyala Cif Institutional Needs: Each saarch begins with a thorough analysis of the 
Institution and the po,llion requirements. During this analysis, the senior consultant 
spends Eixten_slve time researching the distinctive history, culture, .stnmgths, and 
challeng11s of the Institution and the E!C&demlc or •dmlnlstrative unit. The senior 
consultant meets with key stakeholders, Including-es apj)IICilbl- trus~, president, 
provost, faculty, students, afaff, alumnl, and community leaders, llstanlng carefully to 
their perspectives and needs. Once this Information has been gathered during the pr11-

. search cempus visit, the senior consultant will work qulQkly to develop a draft poaltf9n 
profile, advertisement and advertising plan for the search, wl,lch wlll lJe· used In 
recruiting a diverse and qualified pool of applicants. cirtce drafted, these documents wlll 
be shared for review wllh the Search Commlllae and hiring authority. The senior 
consultan_t will make any desired edits. The advertisement and profile are typically 
posted to Academic Search's website and wllh Committee-approved print and/or onlille 
publlcetlons within a couple of weeks of the pre-search visit. 

3) Recruitment qf Sttona and lilcluslve Candidate Pool: The. third step Is to build a 
candidate pool Cl'Jlflad fQr the specmc search and p~d qualifioattons of the positlun. 
We cast a wide net to find the very best can_didatas locally, 11$tionally, and globally, and 
acll\fllla extensive nelworl\S to identify a broad and diverse group \If candl!lates with the 
desired e:ttrlb~ an!! experience. the seniQr consultant w.~1 engage In active 
recruitment of potential caildl!:lates thr()l)gh their personal networks and other outreach, 
by emaU, phone, and video or in-peison meetings as needed. Applications an, sent 
directly to Academic Search and kept im. a secure website, lo which only Ilia Search 
CommHtae and the senior consultant have access. · · · 

4\ Candlqie Eve•'!•Usn •pd Selection: The ~ of the search escalates ils I.ha 
Committee begins to ._d and evaluate eppUcstions In order to l!le11tlfy aemfflriallst 
candidates. The senior consullllrit will also Qffer to conduct Ii cre(lentiil review exercise 
with the Search Committee. The purpos$ of this review is to prepare the Committee to 
evaluate appUcaUons using Iha position criteria previously Identified. Af this time, the , 
Committee will also be Introduced to the secure website. The site Is password-protected 
lo ensure conflc!enUallly and.houses all candidate application materl!als. A full-time 
director of technology services la available to respond to questions and trouble-ehoot 
any technology Issues throughout the search, · 
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The senior consultant will return for the next meeting, at which the Search Committee 
will evaluate all aj>pllcatlona, assessing IIJe materials submitted by candidates In light of 
the desired capablllHes ouUlned in the l_nsfltutional profile. Al this time, th11 senior 
consultant wlll also assist the Search Committee in na"owlng down the applicant pool to 
those most .quaflflad for flrst-rou11d Interviews, referred to as semifinalist Interviews and 
often held at a confidential, neutral site off campus. Cells to on-llat references may be 
made at this stage or l!ller in the process. 

E lot,rv1ews and Vtflloe of Candidates (Part 1- Semjflnallpt Im,rylew8): Once the 
semifinalists have bean chosen, lnterviaws·are scheduled. Semifinalist lntentiewa can be 
conducted in penion or lhrough vldeooonferenoing, according to the wlShes of the 
Search Comm.lttee. In lhe event. the Committee selects a video Interview, Academic 
Search will provide ttie campus with loglsUcsl support for video conferencing platforms. 

• Academic Search staff achedules the Interviews and the senior consultant is pl8S8nt to 
assist the Committee .throughout the prociiis. 

. ' . ' -

· lntaryJew,· lllh'd Ytflloe of Candidates: {Pait K11mplia Yl,D,l: Fellowing 1he first­
round Interviews and the selection offlrilillsts by the Committee, the senior colillultant 
conducts bsckground checks, including off-list reference calls on the flnallsts as wall as 
deg~ verifications. All local arrangements f?r campus lllalts by flnallsts would be made 
by Suffolk County Community College, with aaaletance from Academic Search. 

8) FacHltatlon af tbe Anpo!ntli)ant iod Launch: Upon the BBlectlon of flna6ats, the 
senior consultant conUnµes to facilitate the final recruitment, s11lecllon and !!PPDlntmant 
proeess, asslsttng the Search Committee as needed, helplng to announce the 
appointment pubDcly, as wan as assisting with transition actMtles for the designated 
appointee. · · 

n. Jwo Way eommunlcatjon 

In an of our eearches, the senior consultant remains the point of contact for the search. 
The various stakehold11111 can reach out to the senior consultant al any time to discuss 
the search. There are al least four on csmpus meeUnge thst the ~nlor consultant 
allends and s/he Is available via video conference, If needed. Many of our search chairs 
set up a weekly call with the sanior consultant 

Ill. SpecifiqJSqecjal Qualifications 

Dr. Robinson Pippins _and Dr. Israel have significant campus experience. They each 
understand the unlqul! needs of a community college campus. They are well suited to be 
svallable and are a sustained resouros for each search. Ms. Nolde has extensive search 
experience with community coll11ges and also is prepared to be avallabla to the campus 
community as needed. 

Iv. Approach 

The senior consultant wlU facilitate each step of the process as ouHlnad aboV8. The work 
is coordinated between the &11nior consultant and their. assigned associate consultant 
During lhe lnltlal phases of the search, a time-line wlll be presented and approved by the 
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committee. This wlll ensure that we meet the deadllnes throughout the search, Any 
changes or deviations wlU be dlscuseed thoroughly with the search chair and hiring 
authority. 

v. TI me-Line 

Based on th1;1 prooees outllned above, we suggest the followlng dales, marked In red, 
which assumes the new Executive Campus Dean Is to be appointed quickly. Thesa 
dates can ~rtalnly be modified after consultation with the College and the Search 

. Commlllaa. 

1) Organization of !lie Search: April 2017 
2) Analysis of Institutional Needs: April 2017 
3) Recruitment of Strong and Inclusive Candidate Pool: May 2017 
4) Candidate Evaluation and $election: L$-May 2017 
Sa) Interviews and Vetting of Candidates (Semlflnallet Interviews): l:ariy-June 2017 
5b) Interviews and Vetting of C11ndldates (Campus Visits): Late June 2017 
6) Facllltatlon of the Appointment; July 2017 

For a typical search, the followlng tfmeline would be used: 
' ' 

1) OrgenizaU.on of the Search: Month 1 
2) Analysis of lnstltUlional Needs: Month 1 
3) Recruitment of Strong and Inclusive Gandldsle Pool: Month 2 
4) Candidate Evaluation and Sslectlon: Early Month 4 
Sa) jnterviews and Vetting of Candidates (Samlflnallst Interviews): Mid-Month 4 
5b) Interviews and Vetting of Candidates (Campus Visits): Early Month 5 
6) Facllitatlon of the Appointment: Lele Month 5 

2.b. Anttclpated Issues and Resolutions 

Moel of our searches are conducted without significant challenges or l88Ues. A rushed Ume-tlne 
Is one of the anticipated Issues, We work as quickly and difigenUy as we can to make sure all of 
the mile markers .,. met Open communication is key to this Issue,· 

End of Text for Exhibit D 
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Exhibit E 
Payment Terms and Conditions 

1. .General Payment Terms 

a. Contractor shall prepare and present an invoice to the College for payment by the College. 
Claims shall be documented by sufficient, competent and evidential matter. Payment by the 
College will be made within thirty (30) days after app.roval by the College. 

b. Contractor agrees that it shall be entitled to no more than the fees set forth in this Exhibit E for 
the completion of all work, labor and services contemplated in this Agreement. 

c. The charges payable to Contractor under this Agreement are exclusive of federal, state and 
local taxes, the College being exempt from payment of such taxes. 

d. The acceptance by Contractor of full payment of all billings made on the final approved under 
this Agreement shall operate as and shall be a release to the College and/or County from all 
claims and liability to Contractor, its successors, legal representatives and assigns, for services 
rendered under this Agreement. 

2. Agreement Subject to Appropriation of Funds 

This Agreement is subject to the amount of funds appropriated and any subsequent modifications 
thereof and no liability shall be incurred by the College and/or the County under this Agreement beyond 
the amount of funds appropriated for the Services covered by this Agreement. 

3. Limit of College's Obligations 

The maximum amount to be paid by the College as set forth on the cover page of this Agreement shall 
constitute the full obligation of the College in connection with this Agreement and any matter arising 
therefrom. 

4. Specific Payment Terms and Conditions 

See ATTACHMENT 1, annexed hereto. 
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. ATTACHMENT 1 
Specific Payment Terms and Conditions 

Fee for Full Fae for 
Tltla ,, Recruitment. Search Services services Only 

Executive-Vice President $ 
' 

54,000.00 $ 37,000.00 

VP Academic Affairs 
VP Student Affairs 
VP Businees & Finance 

$ 50,000.00 $ 33,000.00 

VP lnstitutlonal Advancement 
$ 47,500.00 $ 31,000.00 VP Planning & lnetitutional Effectiveness 

VP Workforat & Economic Development 
General Counsel · $ 41,000.00 $' 27,000.00 

Assoolate VP 
$ 46,000.00 $ 30,000.00 _Executive Deans - Ammerman & Grant 

Assistant Vice President $ 41,000.00 $ 27,000.00 

Executive Dean • Eastern $ 42,500.00 $ 29,000.00 

Oirsclor 
Executive Director 
CoHege Deputy General Counsel $ 40,000.00 $ 27,000.00 
Admlnlstrallve Director of Business 
Operations 

College Dean 
$ 37,500.00 $ 27,000.00 Campus Dean 

Executive A&Bistant·to the President $ 37,500.00 $ 27,000.00 

Assistant to the \Ilea President 
·Project Director 

$ 37,500:00 $ 27,000.00 Communications Director 
Director of Legislative Affairs 
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Cost Proposal- Revised 

We will not be requesting any changes to the model agreement. 

We do not charge an administrative fee for fun or limited servicas. A chart of fees Is 
listed at the and of the cost proposal for full and llmltad services. 

If a second search Is conducted on the same tlmeUne, a 5% discount wm be applied to 
professional fee. 

For a full search, payments are contingent upon completion of each of the following 
mil-nes: · 

• 113· of the professional fee when the recruiting begins 
• 1/3 of the professional fee when the semi-finalist candidates are identlfted 
• 1/3 of the professional fee when the search has cor,cluded. 

Our fee covers all expenses otl)er than discretionary costs for travel (both consultant and 
candidate), advertising, and background checka. The above costs are directly billed to 
the client During the pre-search visit, the senior consultant will work with the ·search 
Committee to review costs and cost-saving measures. The framework for travel and 
advertising expenses Is reviewed and approved by the responsible Suffolk County 
Community College official. After finalist candidates are chosen, Academic Searcfl will 
conduct degree verifications and use a third-party company for background checks, if 
regues)ed. · 

Our team does not bill on an hourly rate or bassd on tasks. Our professional fee is the only fee 
we charge. 

A detailed estimation of the reimbursable costs Is Hated below. 

Estimated Mimbursable search-related axpanp: 
Consultant Travel (1 consultants, assuming 3-4 visits to campus) 
Advertising Estimates (includes onllne only) 
Finalists' Background Checks (3 finalists) 
Total Estimated Reimbursable Elcpen•n 

$5,000.00 
$2,000.00 
$1.500.00 
$8,1100:00 

We do not typically Include astimates for candidate travel. This expense can vary considerably, 
depending on how many candidates are invited to semllinslst and campus interviews, as well 
as the distance the candidates must travel. Historically, we have found that $1,000 per 
semiflnallst and $2,000 par flnallst candidate to be reasonable estimates when trying to 
determine the travel costs associated with interviews. Total travel costs for the entire search can 
be estimated to be between $6,000 and $16,000 for candidate travel . 

. The projected advertising budget includes only onllne advertisements. A significant and robust 
pool of candidates can be attracted using many online ad venues, as indicated in this proposal. 
In addition, much of our top candidate recruitment comes from our firm's own direct outreach, 
which Is included in the professional fee. If a print ad for The Chronicle of Higher Education is 
dee Ired, It can add $3,000 - $5,000. The 1111nlor consultants and Search Chalr(s) will discuss 
whether additional print venues will be beneficial in this search. 

ACADEMIC0SEARC1l 
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Our Guarantee 

· Acade,nlc Search guarantees our work and process. In the unlikely event that the hiring 
authority is not satisfied with the candidates recommeflded or the search Is not 
concluded for other re11&0ns, Academic Search win continue to be available to conduct 
either an extended search or a second search. The second search must be launched 
within twelve months of the c:ontract. Moreover, in the very unusual event that an 
appointment resulting from our search is tennlnated for cause within twelve months or 
the appointee leaves within the first twelve months after first reporting to work, Academic 
Search agreee to conduct a sec:ond 111111rch without any additional professional fee, aia 
long as the aearch commences within three months after thB position is vacated. In each 
of the scenarios described above, the only additional charges wm be related to · 
discretionary expenses determined by the search committee related to candidate travel, 
consultanttravel, advertising, and background checks. 

Non-Solicitation f'/edge 

Academic Search prides Itself on the high standards we observe for executive search 
services. Thus, an Important part of our approach to each search, during the process 
end thereafter, Is our pledge to uphold and exceed the indusby standard for non­
solicitation. 

To that end, we will not directly solicit any employee of any institution for which we are 
currently performing an active search. Aller the search concludes, we will extend that 
non-solicitation pledge for a period of one year. I.f a member of the campus community 
receives a direct solleitation from Academic Search during a non-solicltatlon period, it 
should be immediately reported to our vice president for admlnisti'alion and finance, and 
appropriate fallow-up action will be taken. If a candidate or member of a campus 
community approaches us during a non-solicitation period through appllcatlon or. 
nomination, we are ethically bound to respond to them and treat them equally In the 
search process. In addition, the president or chancellor of a client insUtutlon may waive 
this non-solicitation pledge as to specific emplayees by communicating that waiver to the 
firm. 

LIMITED SERVICES 

For limited search &e111lces, payments are contingent upon completion of each of 
the foUowlng milestones; 

• 1/3 of the professional fee when the ads are placed 
• • 1/3 of the professional fee when the recruiting period ends 
• 1/3 of the professional fee when ttie pool is turned over 

After Suffolk 'Community Conege has created the search commlttee(s), organized 
the search process, and ~lewed the poslllon description and' advertlsements 
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that were previously created, Academic Search will collaborate with your . 
commltteB(s) to recruit a pool of candidates, which will include the following: 

• LimHed analysis of Institutional needs: senior consultant will be avallable 
to meet with select key stakeholders in person, as determined by Suffolk 
Community CoNege; 

• Actvlce and recommendations on the position profile and advertisements 
after the lnHial drafting by the Institution; · 

• Development of national advertising plan and placement of the 
aclvertlsernents: 

• Distribution of e-malls to members of the firm's proprietary database of 
professionals in higher education wHh Information about the position; 

• Personal!Zad outreach to a selected pool of potential candidates based 
on the senior consultant's assessment of the posHion; 

• Management of all potential candidate inquiries, appUcalions, and other 
materials: · 

• Creation of secure websHe to house appllcatlon materials for search 
committee members to review; 

• Submission of a pool of candidates for search committee consideration 
and the senior consultant's evaluation of the strongest candidates that are 
fuDy qualHled individuals to be seleclecl by the committee for initial · 
Interviews. 

• We will extend a search for three months if the hlrilg authority cannot find 
any acceptable candidates In the pool to invite for interviews; 

This option does not include: 

• Organization of the search process; 
• Complete analysis of Jnslllutlonal needs; 
• Management of formal candidate review and cllent/c1mdidate 

interviews/campus visits; 
• Formal reference checks, background checks; 
• Facilitation of the appointment; 
• A guarantee to conduct a second search without fee in the event that a 

contract is not concluded, or that a contract Ill tenninaled for cause or the 
appointee leaves within the first year of appointment. 

End of Text for Ex:hlblt E 

Page25 

mattiak
Text Box



Academic Search, Inc. Contract No. 22-CC-011 
Executive Search Consulting Services 

Exhibit F 

College's Request for Proposals 

Attached hereto and made a part of this Agreement as Exhibit F is the College's Request for Proposals 
("RFP") No. R1700006, for Executive Search Consulting Services, advertised March 23, 2017. 

Page26 

mattiak
Text Box



Contract No. 22-CC-011 

Request for Proposal• R1700006 
Executive Search Consulting Services 
Advertised March 23, 2017 

Suft'olk County Community College 

Exhibit F 

Request for Proposals (RFP) 

for the 

Executive Search Consulting Services 

Suffolk County Community College 

Technical Questions Due: March 30, 2017 

Proposer's Conference: N/A 

Proposals Due: April 6, 2017, no later thnn 12:00 p,m, 

For additional information, contact: 
Beatriz Castafto 
Administrative Director of Business Operations 
castanb@sunysuffolk.edu 

All Proposals must be signed in ink and accompanied by a signed transmittal letter, 
County Disclosure SCEX Form 22 and Bid Certitlcation SCPD-7 

Proposals must be submitted in a scaled envelope with the RFP number, services, due date 
nnd time elearly ldentlfted. 

Late Proposals Will Be Rejeeted 
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Request for PropOlial - R1700006 
El[ecutive Search Consulting Services 
Advertised Mareh 23, 2017 

Table or Conten111 

Seetlon l 
Administrative Information 

1. Purpose of RFP 
2. Background Information 
3. Coordinating Departments 
4. Evaluation Committee 
5. Administrative and Technical Questions 
6. Proposer's Conference 
7. Due Date for Proposals 
8. Number of Copies 
9. Proposal Format 
10. Selection Process 
11. Award Criteria 
12. RFP Policies and Procedures 

Sectlonll 
Award Criteria 

I. General Qualifications 
2. · Proposed Services/Products 
3. Cost Proposal 

Seetionill 
SeopeofWork 

Section IV 
Model A11reement 

Contract No. 22-CC-011 

Suffolk County Community College 

http://www.sunysuffolk.edu/Administration/BusinessAffail'S!RequestForProposalslindex.asp 

Section V 
Suft'olk County Request for Proposals (RFP) 
Legal Appendices/ Form1 revised as of 10/22/02 

http;//www.sunysnftblk.edu/Administration/BusjnessAffuirs/RequestForProposals/index.asp 

Section VI 
Miscellaneous Forms 
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Contract No. 22-CC-011 

Request for Propotal • R1700006 
Executive Search Consultiug Services 
Advertised Mardi 23, :2017 

Suffolk County Community College 

l. Purpose of RFP 

Section I 
Administrative Information 

Suffolk Cowity Community College (College) invites proposals (Proposal(s)) from qualified 
companies (Company) to provide the College with executive search services for various 
executive positions on an as-needed basis throughout the duration of the agreement. There is 
an Immediate need to conduct a search for the position of Executive Campus Dean at its 
Eastern Campus located in Riverhead, NY. 

The College requires that the selected Consultant operate within a very tight timeline in 
conducting the search services. 

It is anticipated that one contract will be awarded with a term of one (I) year and four (4) 
additional one-year renewal options to be exercised at the College's discretion. The terms of 
each option period shall be as mutually agreed upon by all parties. 

2, Background Information 

The College is a non-resident, public, two-year institution with three campuses (located in. 
Riverhead, BieDtwood and Selden) and extension centers lowted throughout Suffolk 
County. 

The College annually enrolls approximately 27,000 students and is a member of the. State 
University of New York (SUNY). 

3, Coordinating Departments 

I. Prior to Award of Contract 

.The College's Office of Business and Financial Affairs (contact listed below) is 
responsible for coordinating the issuance oftbe RFP. 

Contact: Beatriz Castano 
Administrative Director of Business Operations 
Suffolk County Community College 
533 College Road, Rm. 16, NFL Building 
Selden, New York 11784-2899 

castanb@sunysuffolk.edu 

IL After Award of Contract/Prior to Execution of Contract 

The College's Office of Legal Affi!irs will be responsible for coordinating with 
Company regarding the negotiation and execution of the contract, · 
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Requut for Proposal• Rl700001i 
:Executive Seerclt Consulting Senlces 
Advertised Mareh 23, 2017 

iii. After Execution of Contract 

Contract No. 22-CC.011 

Suffolk County Community College 

The Office of Business and Financial Affairs is responsible for administration of 
Company's contract, including payments. 

4, Evaluation Commitftle 

A College Evaluation Committee will make the final selection of Company. The Evaluation 
Committee will include, but not be limited to individuals in the following roles: Assistant 
Vice President of Human Resources, Executive Dean, Vice President of Institutional 
Advancement, . Deputy General Counsel and Administrative Director of Business 
Operations. 

5. Administrative a11d Technieal Questions . 

a. Administrative Questions may be submitted in writing to the contact listed in 
paragraph 3 above. E-mail and fax are acceptable; e-mail is preferable. 

b. Technical Questions must be submitted in writing on or before Mareh 30, 2017 to 
the contact listed in paragraph 3 above. E-mail and fax are acceptable; e-mail is 
preferable. The College Evaluation Committee will develop responses to. the 
technical questions. Responses will be issued by the College in the form of an 
Addendum to this RFP. 

Offlee of Business and Financial Affairs ill So1e Contact during RFP Process 

All communications during the RFP process should be directed to the Office of 
Business and Financial Affi1irs or, as appropriate, the College's Office of Legal 
Affairs. Communication with any other College or County employee or any member 
of the College Evaluation Committee or any incumbent company for the goods and 
services being procured pursuant to the RFP may be cause for disqualification from 
the RFP process. 

Ii. Propos~r•s Conference 

· A Proposer's Conference will not be held. 
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Contract No. 22-CC-011 

Request for Propllllll - RI 700006 
Executive Search Consulting Services 
Advertised M1uch 23, 2017 

Suffolk County Community College 

7. · Dae Date for Proposals 

Proposals must be submitted to the attention of Ms. Seema Menon, at the address listed in 
paragraph 3 above by April 6, 2017 no later than 12:00 p,m. In the interest offairness to 
all participants, no extensions or exceptions will be permitted, unless issued as an 
Addendum to this RFP and applicable to all companies. 

8. Selection Process 

The College will evaluate the submission through a point rating system, set furth below In 
Paragraph 11. The College may invite finns to make piesentations to the Evaluation 
Committee to demonstrate their qualifications and approach to. the project. The final 
selection will represent the best interests of the College. 

!I, Award Criteria 

10. 

Proposals will be evaluated and ranked based on the award criteria below which is further 
described in Section n. Award Criteria: 

Points 

a. General Qualifications 40 

b. Proposed Services/Products 35 

c. Cost Proposal 25 

Total 100 

Propllllll Submission 

a. Number of Copies 

Proposers must submit one hardcopy original (clearly labeled) and six (6) copies of the 
Technical and Cost Proposals. In addition, Proposers must submit a CD or thumb drive, 
with the MSWord or PDF format of the TCllhnical and Cost Proposals. Each proposal 
inust include both the technical and cost proposal. Envelopes or boxes containing RFP 
responses must be clearly labeled with the Proposer's name, due date and title of the 
Request for Proposal. Failure to properly label the responses may be cause for 
disqualification. Do not submit proposals that are pennanently/periect bound. Binders 2 
inches or below, spiral binding, staples, etc., are acceptable. 

b. Proposal Format 

Proposals must include the information requested below, and in the order listed. Each 
section and sub-5ection mllllt be separated by tabs that are clearly labeled, and the 
pages numbered, Further details of the Proposal Submission Format is provided at 
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Contract No. 22-cc-011 

Request for Proposal • RI 700006 
Executive Search Consulting Services 
Advertised March :23, 2017 

Suffolk County Community College 

the end of this section. 

i. Table of Contents 

A Proposal Checklist has been provided at the end of this Section I -
Administrative Information, to assist with assembly and ensure completeness of 
the proposal package. This Proposal Checklist must be included as the first item of 
the J>i:oposal and used as the only Table of Contents. · · 

ii. Transmittal Letter on Company Letterhead 

Signed by a corporate officer or an authorized agent of Company 

iii. General Qualifications 

iv. Proposed Se"ices/Products 

v. Colt Proposal: 

(1) The Cost Proposal must be submitted with the Technical Proposal in the 
same package as other items requested by this RFP. 

(2) · One original and six (6) copies of the Cost Proposal are required, along with 
an electronic copy, as reflected in item 8,a above. 

vi, Requested Changes to Model Agreement 

Company should identify any items not set forth in the Model Agreement 
(reference Section IV) which Company requests be negotiated. A lack of 
i:ommenls will be considered full acceptance of the contract terms on the part 
of the Company, 

vii. County Bid Certification Form SCPD-7 

One original, signed by a corporate officer or an· authorized agent of the Company 
must be included as a separate and clearly labeled section of 1he original hardcopy 
of the Technioal Proposal. Fotm SCPD-7 is included in the Section VI entitled 
"Miscellaneous Forms". 

viii, Local Business Certification Form SCDP-8A (if applleable) 

One original, signed by a corporate officer or an authorized agent of the Company 
must be included as a separate and clearly labeled section of the original hardcopy 
of the Technical Proposal. Form SCDP-8A is included in the Section VI entitled 
''Miscellaneous Forms". 
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Request for Proposal • R1700006 
Executive Search Consulting Services 
Advertised March 23, 2017 

ix. County Disclosure SCEX Form 22 

Contract No. 22-CC-011 

Suffolk County Community College 

Three originals, signed by a corporate officer or an authorized agent of Company 
. and notarized, must be included as a separate and clearly labeled section of the 
original hardcopy of the Teclmical Proposal. SCBX Form 22 is included in the 
Section VI entitled ''Miscellaneous Forms." 

11. RFP Policies and Procedures 

a, All RFP documents are available for download from the Suffolk County Community 
College' website under the following link: 

http://www.sunysuffollc.edu/Administration/BusinessAtrairs/ReguestForProposals 

The Office of Business and Financial Affairs has responsibility for maintaining a 
control list of all potential Proposers. Companies who intend to submit a. proposal 
must complete ''Bid-RFP Vendor Registration Form" included in the RFP documents 
and submit it to the contsct person identified in Section I. 

b, It is the College's intent to select the Company that provides the best solution for the 
College's needs. 

c, Reference is made to the Model Agreement attilched (set forth )n Section IV) for the 
terms and conditions of the Agreement to be entered into, including indemnification 
and insurance. The Model Agreement is subject to revision arising out of the rerms 
and conditions imposed by law or deemed appropriate by the College's Office of 
Legal Affairs. 

d, This RFP and the Company's response to this RFP, as may be subsequently modified 
in negotiations with the College, may be included as exhibits in any contracts that the 
College may execute with Company. 

e. The College reserves the right to amend this RFP. The College reserves the right to 
reject any or all of the proposals, or any part thereof; submitted in response to this 
RFP, and reserves the right to waive formalities, if such action is deemed to be in the 
best interest of the College. The College reserves the right to request additional 
information from any Proposer. The College reserves the right to award negotiated 
contracts to one or more Companies. 

f, This RFP is not intended and shall not be construed to commit the College to pay 
any costs incu1Ted in connection with any proposal or to procure or contract for any 
services. 

g. The decision to award a contract shall be based on Company's ability to provide 
quality serviees and products and to comply with all applicable laws, rules and 
regulations, including without limitation the Local Preference Law and other Suffolk 
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Request for Proposai.- R1700006 
Executive Search Consulting Serviees 
Advertised March 23, 2017 

Contract No, 22-cc-011 

Suffolk Couty Community College 

County local laws set forth in Section VI entitled "Miscellaneous Forms." 

h. The College is required to comply with the Suffolk County Local Preference Law as 
amended. This local law establishes a preference for businesses located within 
Nassau and Suffolk Counties when selecting fums for award of consulting services 
coutract(s). Bidders are encouraged to familiarize themselves with the provisions of 
this local law as this law may impact the selection process. 

i. the award of any contract will be made as judged to be in the best interest of the 
College. The final selection of the company will be made by the College Evaluation 
Committee, including but not limited to, the representatives set forth in paragraph 4, 
entitled "Evaluation Committee" of Section I of this RFP. 

j, The College General Counsel acts as counsel to the Evaluation Committee, but does 
not vote in the selection process. 

k. Each Proposal will be examined to determine whether it is responsive to the 
requirements of this RFP. All responsive proposals will be evaluat.ed in'accordance 
with the criteria set forth herein. 

I, While the College is under no obligation to contact companies for clarifications, it 
reserves the right to do so. Depending on the number and quality of the proposals 
submitted, the College, at the sole discretion of the College Evaluation Committee, 
may elect to int.erview all or some of the companies during the selection process and 
to request presentations, including demonstrations of products and services. 
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Contract No. 22-CC-011 

Request for Proposal - JU 700006 
Executive Search Consulting Services 
Advertised March 23, 2017 

Suffolk County Community College 

TABl,E OF CONTENTS 

This form MUST be inelnded In your proposal as the only Table of Contents. 

PROPOSAL MUST BE SUBMlTl'ED IN THE ORDER LISTED BELOW, 

w IID:I 

L . TABLBOFCONTENTS 

IL TRANSMITTAL LETTER 

III. GENERAL QUALIFICATIONS 

a) 

b) 

I. 

ii. 

HI. 

Iv. 

v. 

General Infonnation / Company History 

Expertise of Company and all proposed sub-consultants, including 
Qualifications and Experience of Personnel 

Experience 

References 

Staff Qualifications/Resumes, List of Sub-consultant(s), Organizational Chart 

College/County Contracts 

Supplemental Jnfonnation 

C) Quality Control 

i. 

ii. 

iii. 

Operational Plan 

Record and Reporting Systems 

Operating Problems 

d) Financial Viability 

i. 

ii. 

IU. 

Financial Statements 

Indebtedness to County and/or College 

Liens and Lhlgqtion 

IV. TECHNICAL PROPOSAL 

a) 

b) 

V. 

Understanding of Project Requirements, Management Techniques and 
Approaches · 

Anticipated Issues and Resolution 

COST PROPOSAL 
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Contract No. 22-CC,011 

Request for Proposal - R1700006 
Executive Search Consulting Services 
Advertised March 23, 2017 

Suffolk County Community College 

Please check 
If Included 

REQUESTED CHANGES TO MODEL AGREEMENT 
VI. (To be submitted with "Original" proposal only & not with any of!he copies) • 
VIL • COUNTY BID CBRTJFICATION FORM SCPD-7 

(To be submitted with "Original" proposal only & not with any of the copio,) • 
VIlL 'LOCAL BUSINESS CERTIFICATION FORM SCPD-8A • 

(If applicable, to be submitted with "Original" proposal only & not with any of the copies) 

'COUNTY DISCLOSURE SCEX FORM 22 • 
IX. (To be submitted with ''Original" proposal only & not with any of the copies) 

X. "LIVING WAGE FORM 
(If applicable, to be submitted with "Original" proposal only & not with any of the copies) • 

• CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION • 
XI. (If applicable, to be submitted with ''Original" proposal only & not with any of the copies) 

XII VBNDORREGJSTRATIONFORM 0 

xm ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT OF ADDENDA, if any • 
' (To be submitted with "Original" proposal only & not with any of tho copies) 

XIV. CD-ROM or THUMB DRIVE OF TECHNICAL AND COST PROPOSALS 0 

• For the aaterlsked items: Please provide one oopy of the requested forms as part of the 
original proposal only. 

The required number of originals as Indicated In Section I of the 
RFP, should be unbound and provided in a separate envelope. 

End of text for Section I 
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Request for Proposal • R1700006 
Executive Seareh Consulting Services 
Advertised March 23, 2017 

Section IT 
Award Criteria 

Contract No. 22-CC-011 

Suffolk County Community College 

Responses to the items set forth under each of the categories below, will be used by the College's 
Evaluation Committee to assess the appropriateness and relevaru:e of the infurmation provided in 
the proposals and make a recommendation for award. Failure to include information as 
requested under any of the sub/sectlom in the Propolllli may lead the firm to be disq11Bllfied. 
The responses to each of the categories most be separated by clearly labeled tabs into the 
sections and sub-sections identified below, and reflected in the Table of Contents (form 
provided in Sectloa I) of the Proposal submitted. 

1, General Q11Blifieations: 

a. General Information/Company History 
' 

i. Company Name, e-mait niain address and all branch office addresses; 

ii. Describe the nature of your organization (e.g. business corporation, not-for­
profit corporation, sole proprietorship, etc.), If applicable; identify all 
principals and the ownership interest of each. 

iii. Year Company was founded and brief history. 

iv. Total number of employees. Include an organization chart as relevant. 

v. Location(s) from which majority of the staff will be providing services. 

vi. Annual fee income for the past three (3) years. 

vii. The general and specific design specialties/expertise and overall resources. 

b. Expertise of Company, Including Quallfleadons and Experience of Personnel 

I. Experience: Provide general background information explaining why the firm 
and its sub-consultants, if any, are well suited to perform the requirements of 
this RfP, and how the qualifications of the firm and its pefSOnnel relate to the 
scope of services described in this RFP. Provide a brief history and description 
of the finn' s and sub-consultant's experience in providing the services requited 

• in this RFP, with special emphasis on any experience in the public· sector, 
particularly fot governmental entities, colleges or universities, especially at 
community colleges. 

ll, References: References must be provided, This sub-section most be clearly 
labeled and ·separated by a tab, and mUBt Include clearly identified 
references for both the Consultant and subeonsultants. 

Proposer must submit a list of at least three representative clients, Including 
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Contract No. 22-CC-011 

Request for Proposal- Rl 700006 
Executive Search Consulting Services 
Advertised Marclt 2~, 2017 

Suffolk County Community College 

any other public entities, along with a description of the type of work 
performed for each client and the name of a contact person at the client who 
can evaluate the firm's work. For each engagement, include: 
o A detailed description of the scope; 
o Client/company name; 
o Name, title, and role ofreference; 
o Client/Company address, phone number, and email address. 

The College reserves the right to contact any client listed. Consultants should 
check the references they submit to ensure that each reference and the 
associated contact infonnation is current. 

111 Staff Oualitlcations/Resumes: Describe the qualifications and background of 
your stalt and all proposed sub-consultants' staff, insofar as they relate to these 
services. Qualifications should include but not be limited to prior relevant 
experience. If sub-consultant(s) are not being used, CompBDy shall include 
a statement Indicating this. 

. The information submitted must include: 
• Consultant Infonnation 

0 

0 

. 0 

0 

Identify your finn's management team and describe its experience, and 
qualifications. Indicate the availability of the management team and all 
other personnel required for this assigoment, 
Clearly identify and describe the title and role of the staff who will be 
assigned to the College's account. Proposer must include 
organizational chart in this section. . 
Provide resumes of proposed key staff who · will be assigned tp the 
College's account, inclusive of a description of the qualifications, 
educational background, and work experience for all personnel who 
would be supervising the events, and perform other services as required 
under this RFP. 
Any changes to the team members identified in the proposal must be 
submitted to the College for approval. The College reserves the right to 

· deny payment for any services provided by a team . member not 
approved, in writing, by the College. 

iv. College/County Contracts: In this sub-section, provide a list of all contracts 
with the College or the County of Suffolk, if any, within the last five years 
(regardless of type of service) and the time period for those services. 

· v. Supplemeptal Information: Jnclude any brief supplemental information that 
may be relevant to your qualifications for the worlc. Elaborate or superfluous 
material should not be presented and may count against the company in the 
evaluation. 
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Contract No, 22-CC-011 

Request for Proposal• Rl 700006 
Executive Search Consulting Service$ 
Advertised Mareh 23, 2017 

Suffolk County Community College 

e. Quality Control 

I, Operational Plan: Describe how Company ensure.d performance through 
adequate management, supervision, review and control. 

ii, Record and Reporting System~: Describe Company's system for self­
monitoring and ensuring maintenance of complete and accurate records. 

Iii. Operating Problems: Discuss any operating problems, other than litigation, 
which you have experienced within the past five yell!'S, and their resolution. 

d. Financial 'Viablllty 

i. Financial Statements 

For nongovernmental agencies, submit cum,nt financ;ial statements prepared 
and certified by an independent CPA, or internal statements if certified 
statements are not available or have not been issued within the past twelve (12) 
months. · · 

II. Indebtedness to County and/or College 

(1) . Submit a statement as to indebtedness, if any, to the County and/or 
· College. 

(2) Submit a listing of all outstanding liens, if any, against Company. 

iii, Liens and Litigation 

(1) Submit a summary of litigation, if any, against Company and its 
disposition. 

2. Prop011ed Services/Products: 

a. Understanding of Project/Service Requirements, Management Techniques and 
Approaches ·- Convey your understanding of the service requirements and 
demonstrate a thorough recognition of the process and potential problems to be 
addressed. This includes infoimation on the Company's management and approach 
as follows: 
i, Summarize how you will respond to the specific scope of work, identifying the 

various mmagement techniques, approaches and strategies that will be utilized 
under this Agreement 

ii. Describe the level of continual two-way communication you will maintain wit!i 
faculty and College administrators during the various project phases. 

iii. Discuss any specific or special qualifications. 
iv. Explain how your Company intends to approach the various tasks in order to 
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Request for Proposal"• R1700006 
Exeeutlve Search Consulting Services 
Advertised March 23, 2017 

ensure an expedited selection process. 

Contract No. 22-CC-011 

Suffolk County Community College 

v. Provide a timeline for the Executive Campus D~ search and a general 
timeline for any other searches that may be assigned to your Company under 
this Agreement. Please be mindful of time sensitive requirements surrounding 
executive searches. 

b. Anticipated lpues and Resolutions - Describe anticipated issues that your furn 
may encounter when perfonning the services required in this RFP and identify 
proposed solutions. · 

3. Cost Proposal: 

The cost proposal shall identify all fees associated with the services required in this RFP. 
The Consultant shall itemize the tasks required for a search and indicate the cost for each . 
task. The Consultant shall identify not-to-eic:ceed fees and fixed fees for each task, as 
appropriate. Not-to-exceed fees shall include the title(s) required for the task along with the 
anticipated number of hours and billable rates. 

Consultant shall provide the titles and associated billable rates for each of the team members 
who will provide services under this agreement. 

If appropriate, Consultant may submit a cost proposal for the Executive Campus Dean and a 
separate proposal for any future searches. 

Consultant shall provide all information it deems necessary to explain or clarify its Cost 
Proposal. 

End of text for Section Il 
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Contract No. 22-CC-011 

Request for Proposal• R1700006 
Exeeutlve Search Consulting Services 
Advertised March 23, 2017 

Suffolk Couuty Community College 

Sectionm. 
Scope of Work 

1, Geueral Guidelines 

Suffolk County Community College (College) requires the Consultant (Company) to 
provide the College with executive search consulting services on an as-needed basis. There 
is an immediate need for the position of Executive Campus Dean at- its Eastern Campus 
located in Riverhead, NY. 

2. Project Overview 

a. Organization of the Search Process 

Consultant shall provide the following services: 

i. Assist in structnring the overall process; 
ii. · Counsel on the charge to the search committee; 
iii. Negotiate a timeline and establish policies; 
iv. Develop web-based communications tools; 
v. Draft correspondence as needed for all phases of the search; and 
vi. Maintain and control search records, including candidate credentials. 

b. Analysis oflnstitotional Needs and Preparation of Recommendations 

Consultant shall provide the following services: 

i. Complete on-campus interviews, if required by the College; 
ii. Review publications and reports provided by the College; 
iii, Work with the Search Committee to develop an institutional needs analysis, 

including (a) a Hst of strengths and challenges, (b) a statement of priorities and 
needs, and (c) the specific leadership characteristics sought in a successful candidate; 
and 

iv. Assist in developing a comprehensive web site and/ or lnstitutional profile featuring 
comprehensive information about the open position, the College, the governance 
system and the community. 

c. Recruitment of a Strong Candidate Pool 

Consultant shall provide the following services: 

i. Develop a national advertising strategy; 
ii. Provide a national nominations source list; · 
ill. Follow up with nominated candidates; 
iv. Directly recruit highly qualified candidates; and 
v. Assist in meeting or exceeding affirmative action/equal opportunity expectations. 
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Contract No. 22,CC-011 

Request for Proposal - R1700006 
Executive Search Consulting Services 
Advertised March 23, 2017 

Suffolk County Community College 

d. Evaluation of Candidate List 

Consultant will provide the following services: 

i. Identify the top candidates; and 
ii, Begin reference checks. 

e. Interview and Recommendation Process 

Consultant shall provide the following services: 

i. Conduct preliminary confidential interviews; 
ii. Complete due.diligence on the most promising candidates and select finalists; 
iii. Interview one or more finalists; 
iv. Provide guidelines for candidate(s) visits to the College, if desired; 
v. Recommend a process fur gathering feedback from all who meet the finalists; 
vi. Maintain contact with the finalists to gauge and enbance their interest In the position; 

and 
vii. Develop committee recommendations to the Board of Trustees according to .initial 

charge. 

f. Appointment Faeilitatlon 

Consultant shall provide the fullowing services: 

i. Facilitate communication between the finalist and the board/committee chair; and 
ii, Provide the College with comparative salary/benefit data. 

g. Launch of Suecessful Executive Positions 

Consultant shall provide the following services: 

i. Assist, as requested, with a public announcement of the appointment; 
ii. Facilitate, as requested, an initial planning and agenda-setting meeting with the 

College President · 
iii. Provide appropriate transition-related consultation. 

4. Consultant Participation 

Consultant shall attend search committee meetings and ensure that all necessary agendas and 
supporting materials are prepared in advance of these meetings. 

End of Text for Exhibit F 
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Academic Search, Inc. 
Executive Search Consulting Services 

ExhibitG 

Contractor's Proposal 

Contract No. 22-CC-011 

Attached hereto and made a part of this Agreement as Exhibit G is Contractor's Proposal, dated 
April 6, 2017, submitted in response to the College's RFP No. R1700006. 
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Contract No. 22-CC-011 

Request for Proposal - R1700006 
Executive Search Consulting Services 
Advertised Man:h 23, 2017 

Suffolk County Community College 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Thu form MUST be included in your proposal as the only Table of Contents. 

PROPOSAL M!J:ll BE SUBMITTED IN THE ORDER LISTED BELOW. 

I. TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Il. TRANSMITTALLETTBR 

Ill. GENERAL QUALIFICATIONS 

a) 

b) 

I. 

Ii. 

lit 

iv, 

v. 

General Infonnation / ComJllllly History 

Expertise of ComJllllly and all proposed sub-consultants, incluc!ing 
Qualifications and Experience of Personnel 

Experience 

References 

Staff Qualifications/Resumes, List of Sub-consultanl(s), Organizational Chart 

College/County Contracts · 

Supplemental Information 

c) Quality Control 

I. 

II. 

w. 

Operational Plan 

Record and Reporting Systems 

Operating Problems 

d) Financial Viability 

i. Financial Statements 

ii. Indebtedness to County and/or College 

iii, Liens and Litigation 

IV. TECHNICAL PROPOSAL 

a) 

b) 

V. 

Understanding of Project Requirements, Management Techniques and 
Approaches 

Anticipated Issues and· Resolution 

COST PROPOSAL 
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Contract No. 22-CC..011 

Request for Proposal - Rl 700006 
Executive Search Consulting Services 
Advertised March 23, 2017 

Suffolk County Community College 

REQUESTED CHANGES TO MODEL AGREEMENT 
VI. (To be submitted with "Original'' proposal only & not with any of tho copies) 

• COUNTY BID CERTIFICATION FORM SCPD-7 
VII. (To be submitted with "Orisinal" proposal ollly & not with any of tho oopios) 

VIII ~LOCAL BUSINESS CERTIFICATION FORM SCPD-8A 
• (If applicable, to be submitted with "Original'' proposal only & not with 8J1Y of the copies) 

IX. 'COUNTY DISCLOSURE SCBX FORM 22 
(To be submitted with "Original" proposal only & not with 8J1Y of the copies) 

X. 'LIVJNG WAGE FORM 
(If applicable, to be submitted with "Original" proposal only & not with 8J1Y of the copies) 

XI. 'CERTIFICATE OFAUTIIORIZATION 
(lfapplicable, to be submitted with "Original" proposal ollly & not with any of the oopies) 

XII VENDOR REGISTRATION FORM 

xm ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF REP>IPT OF ADDENDA, if any 
' (To be submitted with "Original" proposal only & riot with any of tho copies) 

XIV. CD-ROM or TIRlMB DRIVE OF TECHNICAL AND COST PROPOSALS 

Please ebeek 
If lnclu.ded 

• 

• 

• 
[V 

* . For the asterisked items: Please provide one copy of the requested forms as part of the 
original proposal on{p, 

The required number of 11rigi11,a/s as Indicated In SecJion I of the 
RFP, should be unbound and provided in a sep~raJe envelope. 

End of text for Section I 
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Ac~DEM1c 0SEARCH 
10!5 18th Street NW. Suite 510. Washington, DC 20036 
(202) 332-404j 
www.atademic-search.com 

TRANSMITTAL LETTER 

April 4, 2017 

Beatriz Castano 
Administrative Director of Business Operations 
Suffolk County CommunHy College 
533 College Road, Room 1 a, NFL Building 
Selden, New York 11784-2899 

Dear Ms. Castano: 

Contract No. 22-CC-011 

On behalf of Academic Search, I wrHe to express our Interest In again partnering with 
you as you prepare for your upcoming searches, We believe that our joint history of 
successfully Identifying your past two presidents in c.ombination with Academic Search's 
breadth of knowledge, methodical yet flexible approach, and accomplished consultants 
will again be an asset in finding highly qualified Individuals. 

WHh over 40 years of experience specializing in higher education searches, Academic 
Search again offers you our extensive experience and a broad oollection of resources. 
You can oontinue to expect: (1) access to a deep and diverse network of highly qualified 
candidates; (2) a proven process that values oollaboratlon and is buiH on trust; (3) an 
intimate understanding of what makes a successful executive academic leader; and (4) 
experience at the highest levels of post- secondary education with a commitment to 
quality and ex,::ellence. 

we· are delighted to offer several senior consultants to this assignment. Dr. Shirley 
Robinson Pippins will serve as the lead senior consultant and may be assisted by Dr. 
Jerry Israel or Ms. Kate Nolde as naeded. I am oonfldent that their decades of higher 
education experience along with Academic Search's proven approach will yield a search 
that produces outstanding candidates from whom to choose your next leader. 

We appreciate the opporiunity to present this Information to you. We pride ourselves on 
our llexlblllty to customize our search process to address your particular needs and 

·· goals. It would be· our pleasure to assist you with the very Important responslblflty of 
finding dynamic· and visionary ~ders for Suffolk County Community College. 

Sincerely, 

-=~·-·--·- -¥..,~~~--
Jessica s. Kozloff, Ph.D. 
President of Academic Search, Inc. 
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1.a General Information and Company ;History 

i. Company Name: 
Email: 
Main Address: 

Branch Offlcas: 

Academic Search, Inc. 
smh@academic-search.com 
1015 181h Street NW, Suite 510 
Washington, DC 20036 
None 

3 

ii. Academic Search is a for0proflt corporation owned by the American Academic 
Leadership Institute (AALI), a not-for-profit leadership development 
organlzatlon. Or. Jessica Kozloff serves as president and Mr. Shawn M. 
Hartman serves as Vice President and Chief Operating Officer. Neither have 
an ownership interest in the firm. 

iii. Founded in 1976, Academic Search Is an executive search firm dedicated lo 
serving higher education institutions and related organizations. From Hs 
beginning, Aca<!emic Search has had the ambitious goal to provide colleges, 
unlversliles, and related organizations with highly professional, individually 
focused search services modeled on best practices In other sectors, which at 
the time was a new concept In higher educatlori. Success was Immediate. 
Academic Search established the standards oil how to recruit the best and 
brightest academic leaders through a pr.ocess that fosters a succassful 
appointment. Through the years, II has also built a dossier of premier clients 
and earned a reputation for integrity, confidentiality, and excellence. 

Iv. Academic Search has 11 full-time employees and 22 senior and associate 
con~1.1itants that do not work full-time but serve as needed for searches. 

ACADEMIC 1S:EARCH 
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v. All of the work for Suffolk County Community College will be coordinated 
through the main office In Washington, D.C. Dr. Robinson Pippins, the lead 
senior consultant, Is also based in Washington, D.C. 

vi. FY2016 Revenue: $5,703,827 
FY2015 Revenue: $5,087,755 
FY2014 Revenue: $4,326,934 

vii.· Academic Search has a dedicated graphic design artist that works with all of 
our searches. She helps produce the ad and profile once the content is 
approved by the campus. She will consult with appropriate Suffolk County 
Community College staffas needed for colors, logos, etc. 

AcADEM_IC~SEARCH 
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1.b Expertise of Company and Personnel 
. . •' . 

i. Experlenoo 

Academic Search Is one of the oldest search firms in the country dedicated exclusively 
to higher education. Over our forty years, we have conducted more than 600 searches 
for public institutions and another 900 searches for Independent Institutions. Our team 
understands the unique needs of the community colle~ system. 

Academic Search's success is measurable. In the past five years, 51 percent of all 
searches conducted by Academic Search have resulted in e female or minority 
appointee. All three senior consultants have experience with various level searches at 
community colleges. 

· Our five-year retention rate, defined as the petcentage of appointees who remain In 
office for lit least five years, is evidence of our careful attention to finding an "institutional 
frt": 

88% of 1:111 presidentlaV9hancellor appointees remain In office 
75% of all vice presldentlal/chancellor appointees remain in office 
79% of all dean appointees remain in office 

Academic Search has conducted the following community college searches In the last 
five years: · 

Institution ! Position Title ] 
· Belmont College .·. 
Clark State Community College 

. Cla'rk ·Slate. Commun11v:eo11ecie 
Cuyahoga CommunltY, College 
Edison Commuriffv ·eolleae 
H.arford Communltv Col!P.ne 
· ivy Tech Community CQ!lege - Colim:ibus 
Ivy Tech Community College - Fort 
Wayne 

President 
Pre11ident 

· Vice President for Academic Affairs . · 
Dean of Crea.live Arts 
President. .. 
President 
Vi()EI Ch1,mcielipi for.Academjc Affairs 

Vice Chancellor for Academic Affairs 

Lakeland .Community College · · . Assocl8Je _ProVOStfor Erifollnient ManaQ.emenf 

Lakeland Community College 
.. 

Lakeland C1;>mmunlly ~ollllge · · 

Lakeland Community College 
Nassau Community College 

Associa!e Prevost for Teaching and Leaming 
Effectiveness 

· Executive VJoe President and Provost and Dean 
of Facultv· . : . · . 
Executive Vice President end Provost 
President . · 

Ohio Association of Communitv Colleaes President and Chief Executive Officer 

AcADEMrc 0SEARCH 
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This spring, Academic Search is completing the following searches: 

Accrediting Comh'iission of Community an.d · 
Junior Colleges (ACCJC) Presidential and CEO 

6 

. 

Boro1,1gh of Manhattan Community College Executive Director of Accelerated Studies in 
Associate Programs (ASAP) 

· Qulnsjgamond •Communliy College · .. President·. 

Ms. Nolde Is completing the search at Borough of Manhattan Community College and 
Dr. RoblhSon Pippins is completing the Quinsigemond Community College search. 

ACADEMIC 1SEARCH 



ii. References 

Quinsigamoncl Community College (MAI 
Presidential search conducted by Dr. Robinson Pippins 
Sue Mailman 
Chair of the Se!!rch Committee 
President, Coghlln Electrical Contractors 
(508) 793-0373 
suemailman@coghlln.com 

This search is scheduled to end In April 2017. 

Edison Community College {QHI (2015) 
Presidemial search conducted by Dr. Jerry Israel 
Darryl Mehaffie 
Chair of the Search Committee 
Former Chair of the Board of Trustees 
(937) 778-7803 
dmehaffie@woh.rr.com 

Harford Community Colles;ie IMDl(2015J 
Pres/denllel search conducted by Dr.Jerry Israel 
Jay Valdes, Former Chair of the Board of Trustees 
Chair of the Search Committee 
(410) 733-2808 
Jay.valdes@comcest.net 

American Ay_oclatlon for Communn,, CoHeqea (AACCl 
Presidential search conducted by Ms. Nolde · 

Contract No. 22-cc-011 

Dr. John (Ski) Sygelski (Currently President et Harrisburg Ares Community College) 
President 
(717) 736-4100 
ski@hacc.edu 

Tidewater Community CoJleqe, Portsmouth campus 
Prol(Ost search conducted by Ms. Nolde 
Michelle Woodhouse 
Provost (Campus CEO) 
(757) 822-2124 
mwoodhouse@toc.edu 

ACADEMICOSEARCH 
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iii. Staff Qualfflcations/ Resume 

Each search wHI be lead by a senior consultant. They have the overall responsibility for the 
search. The management team, Dr. Kozloff and Mr. Hartman, are also available to assist the 
campus should there be a need. 

Dr. Shirley Robinson Pippins will serve as the lead senior consultant for Suffolk County 
Gommuni\y College. She.will be assisted as needed by Dr. Jerry Israel and Ms. Kate 
Nolde, both ~nior consultants. Only one seniof consultant will be assigned to a search. 
In eddition to the senior consultants, who will serve as the primary contacts for Suffolk 
county Community College, the search will be supported by an associate consultant 
Our associate consultants have extehsive training In sourcing, networking, and 

· candidate generation. They Identify targets for Initial outreach, maintain logs 
documenting each senior consultant's interactions with candidates, work with 
semifinalists on the logistics of their Interviews with clients, compile information about 
select candidates, and manage administrative tasks throughout the search. In addition, 
they prepan, written docu·ments for searches and provide assistance to the senior 
consultants during committee meetings and semifinalist Interviews. Biographies of our 
associate consultants can be found on our website af.https:/lacademla-search.comlour­
team. 

In add_ition to the.senior cons~liants and associate consuHants, Mr. Hartman will be responsible 
to answer any financial questions _and supervisu the entire team. Dr. Kozloff would be available 
should there be a partioular question about a senior consultant. Ms. Kelly Frazier Is our Director 
of Research and Technology Services. She assists the campus with technical issues and also 

. supervises the associate consultants and serves as a resource for them. 

ACADEMIC 1SEARCH 



S!llrley R. Pippins, Ed.D. 
!,.sad Senior Cc,nsunant 
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9 

Dr. Pippins joined Aca<;temlc Search In 2016. Prior to this consulting 
experience, Dr. Pippins served as president of three colleges 
(Thomas Nelson Community College in Hampton, Virginia, Suffolk 
County Community Collage in Long Island, New York, and Victory 
University, a small Christian, liberal arts Institution In Memphis, 
Tennessee. Dr. Pippins has served on the Executive Committee of 

. . the American Association of Community Colleges. During her 
tenure, she served as Chair of the Audit and Finance Committee. 

The institutions l!ld by Dr. Pippins have shared Suffolk's commitment to academic 
excellence and student success. Tha community colleges she led have been leaders In 
workfotce and economic development for their regions, with strong corporate 
partnerships leading to funding for workforce development centers and related facilities 

Dr. Pippins has also served as a Sr. Vice President of Programs and Services at the 
American Council on Edµcation (ACE). These programs and services Included 
Spectrum, the Office for Women and the Cehter for the Advancement of Racial and 
Ethnic Equity. In volunteer leadership roles, slie served as the two (2) time chair of the 
Commission for Women at the American Council on Educailon (ACE). Dr. Pippins is 
currently Vice Chair of HERS, an organj~ation dedicated to creating and sustaining a 
diverse pool of women leaders In higher education. 

Dr. Pippins has been actively involved in identifying and developll"!ll talent necessary to 
achieve and sustain excellence In higher education. Dr. Pippins currenUy i;erves as 
faculty for The Executive Leadership Academy (ELA) with UC Berkley. The program 
provides opportunities for the strategic development of the talent pool for higher 
education. Recently Dr. Pippins began supporting ACE's Regional Women's leadership 
Forums, designed for inid'level women admii)istrators, and ACE's Spectrum Aspiring 
Leadership Program. The Spectrum program focuses on developing a diverse pool of 
mid-level managers. Dr. Pippins recently worked with former AACC leaders to design 
and provide a leadership opportunity for women leaders through A2MEND. 

Over the course of her career, Dr. Pippins has identified and/or developed talented 
lndlv!duals for leadership positions Including presidents; Vice presidents, and deans. 
She holds and an Ed.D. from Columbia University Teachers College, a MAT. from 
Manhattanvllle College, and a M.A. from the University of Illinois. Dr. Pippins is a 
graduate of Harvarcfs I. E.M. program and a Phi Beta Kappa graduate of the University 
of Illinois. 

Dr. Robinson Pippins Is oompleting her first two searche11: 

ACADEMIC,SEARCH 
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Brief Resume for: SHIRLEY ROBINSON PIPPINS 
c/o Academic Search, Inc. 
101518th Street NW, Suite 510 
Washington, DC 20036 

EDUCATION 

SUNY Empire State College, Doctor of Humanities (H.D.J 
St J01eph'11 College, Doctor of Laws (H.D.) 
Harvard University, Institute for Educational Management 
Columbia University, Teachers College, Ed.D. 
Columbia University, Teachers College, M.A. 
Manhattanville College, M.A.T. 
University of Illinois, M.A., Psychology 
University of llllnOls, B.A., Psychology, Phi Beta Kappa 

CERTli=ICATIONS 

Certified as Life Skills Educator 
Pennanent New York State Teaching Certificate N-6 

SUMMARY OF ADMINISTRATIVE POSITIONS 

President, Victory University- Memphis, Tennessee - 2011 to 2014 

10 

Senior Vice Pres~ent for Programs & Services, American Council on Education -Washington, 
D.C. - 2009 to 2011 

President, Suffolk C.01.!nty Community College - Long Island, New York - 2003 to 2009 

President, Thomas Nelson Community College ,.. Hampton, Virginia -1995 to 2003 

Vice President and bean, Adult and Continuing Education Programs and the Educational 
· Opportunity Center (EOC), Westchester Community College - Valhalla, New York -1991 to 
1995 

Associate Dean of Community Services, Adult and Continuing Education, Westchester 
Community College Valhalla, New York- 1986 to 1991 . 

Director of Corporate Education Programs, Westchester Community College ... Valhalla, New 
York-1984 to 1986 

DI.rector, Office of Employment and Training, County of Westchester.;. White Plains, New York -
1980 to 1984 

Director of Program Development, Westchester County Personnel Department - White Plains, 
New York- 1979 

ACADEMIC,SEARCH 
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Prograrn Administrator, Child Development Prograrns, Westchester County Youth Bureau -
While Plains, New York-1g751o 1979 

Educational Director, James Weldon Johnson Head Start- New York, New York -1974 lo 
1975 

Instructor of Spacial Education, Follow-Through Project Manager, University of Oregon -
Eugene, Oregon 1970 to 1972 

Jerry M. Israel, Ph.D. 
Senior Consultant 

Dr. Israel is the former president of the University of lndienapolfs, 
Morningside College and Lambuth University and a veteran higher 
education leader with a wide array of expertise. P.rlor lo his college 
and university presidencies, Dr. Israel held multiple aoadernic and 
admlhlstrathie posts at United Methodist institutions, from chair of the 
history department at Illinois Wesleyan University to A9ademlc Dean 
of 11:lat institutio·n and Simpson College. In twenty•fllie years as a 

. Chief Academic Officer and President, Dr. Israel hired dozens of 
acadernic and adrnlriistrative leaders at every level Since retiring from the University of 
Indianapolis, his consulting career branched out into executive placements and searches 
for the Registry of College and University Presidents. Dr. lsraerhas facilitated the hiring 
of lnterirn Chief Academic, Business and Enrollment Officers as wall as Deans in a 
variety of programs. 

Dr .. Israel assumed operational command as Vice President of the Registry's start-up 
boutique permanent affiliate, MMC Search Partners. In the summer of 2013, he led the 
MMC effort 1.ri hiring the new President of the Community College of Denver. He also 
directed searches for a president of the American University of Phnom Penh (Cambodia) 
end the Vice President of Development at Harcum College In Philadelphia. Dr. Israel 
Joined Academic Search in 2014. He Is a prolific writer arid speaker on higher education 
Issues, and hl!!s served on a host of education boar(ls and commissions focusing on 
developing Innovative and progressive approaches in higher education lead.ership. His 
recent book, The 75 Biggest Myths About College Admissions, ~s published by 
Sourcebooks. 

Dr. Israel is currently conducting the Dean of auslness search at Drury University. He has 
previously competed the following seetchea: · 

- I nsti!liti o )1 
- ~ - - - - -

Positio_n_}Jtle 
- -

Aurora iJriiilers1tv Director of the Wackerlln Center for Faith arid Action/Chae lln 
Aurora Universilv Executive Director of.the School of Nursina 
Edison Comrriunttv Colleae · President 
Gannon Universltv Vice President for Academic Affairs 

ACADEMIC,SEARCH 
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Gannon Universitv Director of Physical Tlieraov 
Harford Community 
Collene President 
Hodaes Unlversltv . President 
Wriaht State Unlversltv President 

Brief Resume for: Or. Jerry Israel 
c/o Academic Search, Inc. 
101518" Street NW, Suite 510 
Washington, DC 20038 

Current Ppsltloo 
Senior Consultant. Academic Search Inc. 

Past Executive Positions 
Vice President, Registry for College and University Presidents 
Interim President, f,.ambuth University 
President, University of Indianapolis 
President, Moming11lde College 
Dean of the College, Simp!IDn College 
Illinois Wesleyan University 
· Acting Dean 

Associate Dean 
Director, Social Science Division 
Chair, History Department 

Receht Consulting Assignments 
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Albany State University: Managed strategic planning development, implementation, and 
evaluation 

Alvemia University: Performed community engagement study 
Advised Centers of Excellence start-up 
Staffed integrated marketing/enrollment management planning 

Antioch University: Participated In board/alumni crisis management efforts . 

Colorado Board of Regents: Led retreats 

Hodges University: Developed institutional partnerships 

Trine University: Facilitated Board retreat on name change 
Helped develop Arl~ona campus 

Webster University: Advisor on international program expansion 

ACADEMIC,SEARCH 
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Other Leadershlg ,Experience 
Chair, Northcentral University, Board of Trustees 
Chair, Independent Colleges of Indiana 
Consultant/Evaluator, Higher Learning Commission 
Evaluator, United Methodist University Senate 
Consultant, National Endowment for the Humanities 

Education 
Harvard University, Institute for Educational Management 
Rutgers University, Ph.D. 
University of Michigan, M.A: 
New Yoik University, B.A., Phi Beta Kappa 

Teaching (United States and Asian History) 

Illinois Wesleyan University 
Northern llllnols Unive~lty 
University of Texas, El Paso 
University of Pittsburgh 

Publications 

Contract No, 22-CC-011 
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The 75 Biggest Myths About College Admissions, Sourcebooks, inc. 

Ed., America Viewa China: American Images of China Than and Now, Lehigh University 
Press 

Ed., Building the Organizational Society: Essays on Associational Activities in Modern 
America, Free Press 

Progressivism and the Open Door: America and China, 1905-1921, University of Pittsburgh 
Press 

"Midwestern Small Cities: Building an Integrated Social Science Curriculum," American 
Histo;lcal Association Newsletter 

"The State Department,• Scribner's Encyclopedia of the History of American Foreign Polley 

"Mao's Mr. America: Edgar Snow's Images of China," Pacific Historical Review 

'The Missionary Catalyst: Bishop James W. Bashford and the Social Gospel in 
China," Methodist HistQry 

A biographical sketch of Dwight FIiiey Davis in the Dictionary of American Biog(!lphy 

'For God, for China and for Yale, The Open Door in Action," American Historical Review 

"Muckrake and Manchu. Images of China in the American Press, 1900-1912," Journal of the 
Rutgers University Library 

ACADEMICtSEARCH 



Klite V. Nolde 
Senior Consultant 
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Ms. Nolde has assisted cllents In hundreds of seerches across the 
administrative layera of higher education, giving her an In-depth 
understanding of the varying functions of leadership within the 
administrative and academic structure. She brings to her clients knowledge 
of the essential leadership qualities necessary for different environments, 
and a consuHative style that emphasizes listening, inclusion, transparency, 
and persistence. In her more than 18 years of experience In executive 
i'8Cruitment for higher education,. she has developed a network of education 

administrators extending across the country and at all cabinet level positions. 

Ms. Nolde has personally Interviewed l)undreds of prof!!Slltonals and provided counsel and 
support in partnership W.ilh boards of trustees, presidents, vice presidents, deans and search 
oomrnittees. For every search in which she has the honor to partner, Ms. Nolde leverages her 
axperience to provide cllehts the tools they need to succeed with a commitment to a successful 
Jutcome. · 

Ills. Nolde has completed executive searches for the following colleges and universities: 

Institution ' State Position i 

NY · · · · . President .. 
American AssochJ.tlon of 
Communih• Coll•li•s DC 

· WI .. 

· Blo11nisb"rg Uriivenity PA 
·· PA 

Bo~~h of Mimhit111n Community · 
Col I!' . . :. 

eorc>.~ri~ ofMar111atta11 c~!llmu~ity 
Collellit. : . -; . : : : ·. · .. 

NY 

NY 

Borou9h of Manhattan Community NY 
Colleaa · 
8ol"!llugh of Maltll11ttil" ~mm11nlfy · NY 

.. Collene . · .. . . _- . ·. . . . . · . . 
Briar Cliff Uni1(era., IA 

· Cilifo.mla.Uilivilrsity of . . PA 
Pa~nsuivan/a . . . . .·. . . 
Centr1!1 Pe11navlva11ia CQlleae f>A 

Culver-Stockton IJnlverslty MO 

. Delaware Valley Collage PA 

President 

Direolor of Development 
vi~· P~lde.nt for Universiiy · 
Advance.men.I · . . 
Vice President for Enrollment 
Mananerilent . . . 
· Caan· .of. lnatitutiOflal. · · ·_ ·_· 
Effec!iveness and ·stn;i\eglc .. 
Plaimmn . . . . . ..... 

Chief Information Officer 

Sel'\lor \1iQe .Presiclelit/Provost 

President .. . ·· 
P~sideni•• 

Presider,! 
. · Oeari of Enrollment. 

Manlinement. · · .. 
Vice.President for Academic 
Affairs 
Vlce.~id8(11.for Enrollm~t 
Manacenient . ·. 

ACADEMIC~SEARCH 



Delaware Valley College PA 
Delawal'I! Valley Coll11ge : PA 
Delaware Valley College PA 
Qelaware Valley coriege . . ·. . . . . . PA 
Delaware V11lley College PA 
Ganmin Unlv1m1lty· . •· PA 
HalTisburg Arita C1>mmunlty . 
College . PA 

K!ltztown Unlviraity PA 
· Lackawanna Co!hig~ ··-PA 

Leba.11on Vall,y College PA 
... •. ' ...... -· 

• Llnfield College · · OR .. 
NC 

M!ti'edlth College .· ·· -· -NC 

Monroe· Community COiiege 

~Olit{loriHiry C:qunty Community 
Colle-- . : · .. _. 
Montgomery County Community 
COIIIMie . 
·l!,'!ontg~11ry C:ountyCommynity 
Collillli. ·. . ·: . . . . . 
Montgomery County Coml'llliility 
Coil- .. 
IU!ontgomery C:c;iuiity.Comlill!nity 
-Colle""' , -'... · .... - .. . 

Mus!clngum Uni,,.rslty 

Nebraaka livesreya" University 

Rochester Co111mun1ty arid 
Technloal Coll!lae .. 

. Stlllnian Uni~rsity 
.. . ' ... . .· 
SUNYDelhl 
Thtee Rivers CominunltyC~ll•iJI! 
Tidewater Community College 
University of the Qistrict of 
Coluinlila · · 
University of the District of 
Columbia 

NY 

PA 

PA 

PA 

PA 

PA 

OH 
.. 

NE· 

MN 

AL 

NY 
CT 
VA 

DC 
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Dean of Business and 
Humanities 
.Pl'Elsldent 
Provost 
Vlce·Preliident fQr lristitutlonal ·. 
Advancement · .. · 
Vice President of Finance 
Provost 

Provost 

· President . 
Vice President for Advancement 
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Ciean; Arts arid Science!! . 

Director of Development 

With 18 years of experience in higher education executive recruitment, it is my continued goal to 
provide superior recruitment counsel to colleges and universities across the U.S. Over my years 
of service ta this industry, I have developed the specialized skills and distinct experience 
necessary to provide counsel and guidance to senior executives, presidents, board members, 
and search committees as we together successfully complete searches with excellent 

. placements of presidents, vice presidents and provosts, deans, and other leadership positions. 
It ls my desire ta continue to contribute to higher education through the executive search 
service, allowing me the opportunity to see the successful growth and commitment ta mission of 
client institutions In higher education. 

Profass1ona1. ExperJence: 

Academic Search 

Senior Consultsnt 2016 - present As Senior COl'lsultant, I provide exP11rt counsel and expertise 
to clients in higher educallon at both public and private I nslihltions across the United States. 
With more than 19 years of experience serving as en executive recruiter, my Interaction with 
both the client and candidate brings a level of trust and understanding to the search process. 

· Search expertise ranges from presidential io directorship and vice president to dean. Clients 
range from community college to pu_blic four-year and Independent and faith-based private 
coileges and universities. My reputation for commitment and success has allowed my network 
of professionals in higher education to expand across the academic and administrative 
spectrum. I believe firmly In transparency, asking prodding questions, building consensus, end I 
have been described by clients and candidates es being thorough, Informed, honest, respectful, 
and concerned. 

RPA Inc. 1998-2016 
Vice President and Senior Consultant . 2011 • 2016 
As Vice President, I led sales end was "face" of RPA Inc, at conferences and for sales .calls. My 
role es Senior Consultant Included responsibility for closing ssles opportunities for which I would 
provide leadership for searches. As the lead consultant, I successfully completed searches for 
presidents, vice presidents, directors and Deans et public and private, two-and four-year 
colleges end universities. 
This role Included full responsibility for the entire search process including but not limited to: 

AC:ADEMICtSEARCH 
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• visiting campUs to assess the neeqs and learn more about the environment and 
opportunity, meet with the search committee to orient them tc the search process 

• creation of a marketing plan to announce the search 
• creation of the Job description and search prospectus for use In recruiting candidates 

• providing guidance and support to the search committee 
• recruiting and interviewing leading candidates 
• i:,articipation in ne_utral-slte Interviews 
• conducting extensive reference checking . 
• appropriately stewarding candidates et all statuses In the search 
• assisting with the offer to be made to the leading candidate. · 

Other responslblllties: 
• AU sales and marketing activity for the firm, Including writing of new material ancl 

shaping pf sales and marketing plans, 
• Responsible for sales solely from 2007 until October of 2014 (medical leave) for the 

entire company including securing contracts for inside and outside Senior Consultants. 
• Prepare for and attended, in person, sales visits as nacessary 
• Nurture and m.aintain new and repeat client relationships 
• Thorough research of open positions, reached out to institutional leadarshlp to sell RPA 

Inc. services and promote success of firm 
• Respond. to all sales inquiries 
• Created marketing plan for email campaigns at specifk: periods during the year 
• Respond to and create language for responses to RFPs. 
• Participation in senior leadership meetings. 
• Representation of firm at conferences (CIC 2007-2016, MCC 2012-2016, and others). 

Accomplishments: During the seven years in which I led sales alone,. RPA Inc. experienced its 
largest increase i_n income and its best three years ('11, '12 '13) of income. Our 11st of new 
clients grew, as well as a 40% continuance of repeat business. Our RPF turnaround was also at 
Its highest. l oversaw the process of creating new marketing material for use In sales es well as 
at conferences. 

Associate Vice President 
Responsibilities included: 

• Sales and marketing - as noted in the above section. 

2007-2011 

• Provided support to Senior Consultants as a recruitment ·spe~lalist/ inside office 
representative for a search. · 

• . Managed the full life-cycle of a search, Including all office support, management of 
candidate correspondence and materials, creation of advertisements and job profiles, 
wrlUng l)pdate reports for the client, and assisting the lead consultant with Interview 
scheduling reference checking, and other support. 

• Participated In company management to assess productivity, discuss client Issues, make 
decisions about Important company mattersw such as new hires, pricing of searches, 
prganlzational change, and market presence. 

ACADEMIC~S.EARCH 
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• Hired, evaluated, trained, and oversaw the performance of four full-time and two pert­
time recruitment specialists. 

• Oversaw the database operation. 
• Managed the company calendar, both inside and outside company activity, including the 

timing of search projects to assure appropriate attention was given to each search 
assignment .. 

• Managed all client communication. 
• Managed the president of the firm's schedule. 
• Managed al I of the presidents travel arrangements. 
• Served as a recruitment specialist, supporting lead consultants on search projecte. 

Activllles included: 
• Creating advertlse_ments and job profiles 
• ·Managing the network outreach to assure appropriate prospE1ctive candidates were 

contacted about a search 
• Recruited, evaluated, and conducted preliminary interviews with candidates 
• Handled all nominations appropriately, Including thankl_ng the nominator and contacting 

the npminees 
• Ma_n~ge<! the stewardship of candidates, keeping each informed of their status In the 

search at each mlleslohe 
• Conducted reference checking on top candidates 
• Scheduled candidate Interviews with lead consultant as well as on campus 
• Provided regular written reports on the search status to the client 
• Managed the activities at the close of Iha search, Including notifying candidates that the 

search closed. · 
• Completed all necessary reporting in the company database. 

· Associate Director of f=,cec:utive Recruitment· 1998-2000 
Resppnsil?llities: 

• Assisted In data entry for upcoming searches. 
• Made networking telal)hone calls lo reach potential candidates about opportunities. 
• Rllview applicants' resumes and make recommendations as to a potential group of 

qualified semi-finalists. 
• Interview (via telephone) possible semi-finalists to gain a greater understanding of their 

backgrounds and experiences. 
• Participate In conference calls with dients to guide them in their selection of a defined 

group of semi-finalists. 
• Assemble travel folders for face-lo-face interviews with the semi-finalists. 
• Perform telephone reference interviews on semi-final candidates. 

Education: 

Bloomsburg University, BA in Communication Studies, 3.89 GPA 

ACADEMIC,SEARCH 
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i:>r. Eric W. Richtmyer 
Senior Cipnsultant 

Dr. Rlchtmyer Joined Academic Search In 2014. Prior to becoming a 
member of the firm, Dr. Richtmyer taught at the Maryland lnstllute 
College of Art, Colorado Mesa University, .Concordia University-Saint 
Paul, and the University of Minnesota. AddHlonally, he has served as 
a project manager at the Association of GQverning Boerds of 
Universities and Colleges, where he coordinated the development 
AGBli, an onllne web portal for disseminating best practices rela1ed 

. to higher education governance. Dr. Richtmyer earned a Ph.D. in 
history at the University of Minnesota, and has presented his rese~h at regional, 
national and international. conferences. Dr. Rlchtmyer also holds an MBA with a 
oonceniraticin in marketing from ~ohns Hopkins University, and a BA in history °from The 
Ohio State University. He Is located in our DC office. 

Dr, Richtmyer brings significant experience conducting community college Slll!lrches. In 
the i~t three years, Dr. Richtmyer hes facilitated seven presidential s,arches, three of 
whiQli wera community college presidencies. His experience al Edison· Community 
College (OH}, Harford Community College (MD}, and Nassau Community College htls 
prepared him to assist Qulnsigemond Community College. 

In addition to his search work, Dr. Richlmyer is also active In leadership development. 
He has been a speaker at the American Council on Education (ACE} Women's 
Leadership Forum, as well as a participant in sev~I of the AALl's leadership 
development programs, Including the Executive Leadership AClldemy, and the Senior 
Leadership Academy, 

Since joining the firm In 2014, Dr. Rl.chtmyer has assisted In facll!tatliig the folloWing 
seafchas: · · 

... 

Aurora U11i~rsitv . 
Aurora Unlverdlv 
.Baldwin Wallace Univ~rsitv ,• 

Caldwell Univ11rsltv 

Ci'.irlstooher Ne\1/Dort Uniirei-,.;i.; · 
Coil..,.e of Saint Elizabeth 
CUNY Co.lleae of Staten Island 

Eastern Michigan University 

Edison Communltv Collecie 
Fort Lewis Cl;>llege 

· Dlre.ctor Of the Wackerlin Canter for Faith and 
ActioniChaollh . ' . · · 

Executive Director of ttie School of Nursina 
• \lice.Presii!ani'for Eilrollinent Meri,.;,.,ment 
Vice President for Academic Affairs 
Deen· of the Joseph W. Luter Ill School of · 
Business · . · . . 
Vice President and Dean of Academic Affairs 

·Provost 
Provost and Executive Vice President for 
Academic and Student Affairs 
President. .. 
Deen of the School of Business Administration 
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Harford Comrriunity College President -· 

Hodges University President 
· Howard University Vice President for-Student Affairs 
Humboldt state University .Dean of Natural Resources 1md Sciences 
Indiana State University Vice President. for Student Affairs 
Lock Haven University of 
Pennsylvania Director of Admissions 
McMurry Uriiversity · ·Dean of the Business· School 
Midwestern State lJnlversity President 
N~eail!J Coromuriity Coll(!aEi -· . President .. 
Pa\:)lflo Northwest College of Art President 
Shepherd University · President .. 
SUNY New Paltz bean of the School of Fine and Performlna Arts 
University of Minnesota Duluth ExecutiveVice.'ctiancelior for Academic Affairs 

University of the Pacific Director of the Center for Teaching and 
Learnlno 

University of-the Pacific : Director of Media X 

This spring, Dr. Rlchtmyer is scheduled to QOmplete the following searches: 

Institution ' Positio_!i_"[i\le 

Ea~tem-.. Mic-higiin Urilveri!lty . Dear.t. ofttie Colleae iii Arts arid Sciences 
Lock Haven University of Dean of the College of Liberal Arts and 
Pennsylvania Education 
0!,llnslgamond Comii111ri1ty College . President .. 

.. 

University of Maryiand !:!altimore 
County Director of Procurement 
University of the Paclflc . bean ofthe Gi-aduate School · 
West Chester University UnlversHv Librarian 

Eri~ Richtmyer, PhD 
Education 

M11ater of Buslne!l5 Acjmlnlstratlon, Johns Hopkins U~lverslly, 2014 

Cloctor of Phlloaophy id History, University of Minneso1a, 2010 

Bechelor of Arts In History, The Ohio Sista University, 2001 

P.rofssslonal El'f erience 

Consultant · 
June 2014 - Present 
Academic Search /nil, Washington, DC 
, Provided execuflve search services to Institutions of higher education In partnership with Senior 

Consultants 
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• Responsibilities indude operattonal management of search services 
• Participation In the strategic management of search servlC8$, Including design and Implementation of 

search strategy, coordination with search committee, analysis of lnsfltuflonal needs, recruitment, cand!date 
evaluation, and facilitation of appolnbnent 

• Clients Include Aurora University, Baldwin Wallace University, Caldwell University, Christopher Newport 
University, CUNY College of Slaten Island, Edison Community College, Indiana State University, 
Midwestern State Unlverslly, and SUNY New Paltz 

• Assisted In the S8111'ch for positions Including President ProvosWlce President for Academic Affairs, Vice 
Prestdent for EnroHmant Management, Vice_ President for Student Affairs, Dean of Business, Dean of Fine 
and Performing Arts, and Executive Director of Nursing 

• Participated In higher education leadership development programs including the ACE Women's Leadership 
Forum 

Mark~tlng Intern I Project Manager 
Sept 2013 - Mey 2014 
Association of Governing Boards of Universities and Co/tegas, Washington, DC 
• Served as project manager for AGBU, an on-demand onfine resouree center for higher education non-profil 

association 
• Managed project team of nine, Including budget and performance oversight 
• Provided strategic direction and continue to Implement staged plan 
• Developed materials for use In consulttng engagements by AGB Consulting 

Part: Tim_a Faculty, Department of Humanisflc Studies 
Aug 2012 - May 2014 
Maryland Institute CoDege of Art, Baltimore, MD 
• Designed and inslrucled graduate Slld undergraduate level courses on pollUcs and globalization 
• Established course collaboratton ',Vlth Johns Hopkins Department of Political Science 
• Received filghest evaluation In department, Wllh 96% Excellent mllng 

$ubjact Matter Expert/ Consultant 
June 2011 -Aug 2012 
Cengage Lsarh/ng, Inc., Wellesley, MA 
• Researched and wrote entries for onlihe World History CouiseReader and Weslem CMllzatton 

CourseReader for use In undergraduate courses 

Full-Time Faculty, Department of Social and Behavioral Sciences 
Aug 2010 - May 2011 . 
Colorado Mesa Un/varsfty, Grand Junction, CO 
• Designed and Instructed undergraduate courses from introductory to senior level on history and 

globallzatton 
• Created undergraduate writing curriculum, resulting In 20% Increase In sludent scores based on 

departmental metrics 
• Received Merit Award from Office of President for High Proficiency; invited to advise campus Veterans 

Club . 

~raduate lnstruct<;,r, Institute for Global $tudles/Department of History 
Jan 2006-May 2010 
University of Minnesota, Minneapolis, MN 
• De~gned and instru<l!ed undergraduate courses from Introductory to s~nlor level on history and 

globalization 
• Advised senior lhesls proJecte with 96% completlon rate 
• Parflcipated In planning, organizing, and Implementing outreach program for team-leught Couree In 

Collabaratton 
• Created JOlnt faculty-student collecttve for sharing best practices In teacfllng 
• Supervised _graduate student workers · 
• Received Murphy Prize for excellence In teaching 

ACADEMIC,SEARCH 
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Teaching AHi&tant, Institute for Global Studies/Department of History 
Sept 2002 - Dec 2005 
University.of Minnl1ffla, Minneapolis, MN 
• Led discussion sections for undergraduate lecturil courses, Including honors sections 

Add/Ilona/ Experience 

Qlsc:overy ~ Market Project 
Jan 2013 - Dec 2013 
Johns Hopkins Carey Business School, Baltimore, MD 
• Worked wllh Johns Hopkins faculty to commarciefl:ze research Inventions 

Innovation for Humanity Project 
Aug 2012 - Feb 2013 
Johns HOPklns Carey Business· School, Baltimore, MD & Hyderabad 
• Served as consultant to lnnova Children's Hearl Hospital 
• Provided strategic, financial, and marketing advice to Improve revenue growth 

Voluntaar Tutor 
Jan 2010- May 2010 
The FATHER Project, Minneapolis, MN 
• Tytored adult learners In preparation for GED axaminations at educational non-profll 

General Qalarters Enumerator 
Jan 2010-Al)r 2010 
US Census, Minneapolis, MN 

22 

• Engaged wllh homeless and transient populations to ensure eccurate·raporting on lhe 2010 US Census 

Admlrllstrallva Auilltant 
Sept 2007 - Mar 2008 · 
Un/varsity of Mlnnasolfl, Minneapolis, MN 
• Provided admlnlslrative suppolt for director of Canter for Early Modem History 
• Wrote imd copy edited print ·and email correspondence for the CEMH and for the director's signature 

R-rch Assistant 
May 2006 -Aug 2006 
UnivarsHy of Minnesota, Minneapolis, MN. . 
• Advised faculty on crestlon of website attached to Institute for Global Studies 
• Designed and maln~lhed website for student, staff and faculty-use 

Web Copy Writer. 
Nt,v 2004 - Dec 2006. 

· Big Blue Whale, Inc., Minneapolis, MN 
• Wrote and ccpy edited platform articles for an Internet markethlg ffrm 
• Conducted web research, then analyzed and assimilated Iha! Information for the creation or platform 

articles · 

· AcADEMic~SEARCH 
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iv, College/County Contracts 

Academic Search has not had any contracts with lhe county or college in the last five years. 

V. Supplemental Information 

Academic Search brings deep, specialized experience assisting colleges, universities,. 
and other education-related Institutions by adhering to a number of best practices and 
principles. We believe that by working collaboratively with Suffolk County Community 
College to tailor the search to the distinctive needs and e)!pectations of the College, we 
can successfully recruit outstanding candidates from whom you will choose your next 
campus leaders. We perform all consulting assignments-including research, 
administratlva, and logistical support--'diligently and with an appropriate degree of 
knowledge, thoroughness, and urgency. 

Academic Search ~lues dlversHy In thought and action and is committed to building a 
pool of candidates tha.t exemplifies the commitment of Suffolk County Community 
Collage to diversity and ihclusioo. We have assisted In searches for executives at 
historically black collages and universities, know successful leaders pf color at many 
institutions, and have built a network and record of success In the recruiiment of 
underrepre.sented grouPII, We support (financially and personally) national association 
efforts in attracting women, persons of color, and underrepresented groups to higher 
education leadership who have the skills and experiences sought by Suffolk County 
Community CoUege. Our work with ACE's Spectrum Aspirir1Q leadership Programs and 
the Executive Leadership· Program through UC Berkaiey strengthen our efforts in this 
area. 

One of our major advantages in this regard is our relationship with the American 
Academic Lead~rsl:ilp !nstllute (AALI). Academic Search provides financial support to 
AALI, which then gives granls to programs such as the MIiiennium leadership Institute, 
a year-long educational program for people cif color and women who have been 
identified by their home Institutions as up-and-coming leaders. Academic Search not 
only provides significaht funds t9 mitigate Iha cosls of lhese prog.rains, but our 
consultants serve as pro-bCJno faculty members. We have a similar relationship with the 
American Council on Education In support of its leadership programs, getting to know 
the PE!rilclpants in its "increasing the pipeline" diversity efforts. 

In developing a diverse pool of candidates, the senior consultant cells on the heads of 
various professional associations, founda\lOns, and organizations with special links to 
underrepresented populations to nominate or suggest aspiring leaders as candidates, In 
many of our academic searches, these calls .would include, for example, but are not 
limited to leaders from Harvard's IEM and MOP Programs, the Lincoln Institute for 
Research and Education, National Council on Black American Affairs,' Hispanic 
Association of Colleges and Universities, AAC.C John E. Roueche Future Leaders 
Institute, League tor Innovation, American Indian College Fund, Americ!ln Association of 
Hispanics in Higher EducE!tion, National Indian Education Association, NAACP, HERS 
Institute, the Kaleidoscope lnstHute, and the ACE Inclusive Excellence Group. 

ACADEMIC.$EARCH 
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Finally, we carefully craft an advertising plan that reaches a national audience and also 
specifically targets underrepresented populations. The plan for Suffolk County 
Community College woul(! Include publications such as The Chronic/a of Higher 
Education, Hispanic Outlook, Joumaf of Blacks In Higher Education, Women in Higher 
Education, Diverse Jobs, Inside Higher Ed, Higher Ed Jobs and other specialty 
publications we Identify with you as relevant to the position. 

1.c Quality Control 

l Operational Plan 

The Academic Search senior consultant has the overall responslblllty for the search. S/he Is 
supported by the professional team In Washington, D.C. The senior consultant and the 
associate consultant are in continuous contact throughout the search process. This facilitates 
continuity and quality control. Each search Is customized using the data acquired during the 
initial listening sessions and on-campus visits. Listening sessions are conducted for all 
oonstlluancles ofthe participating institution. At any time, the search committee chair can reach 
out lo br. Kozloff or Mr. Hartman. 

ii. Reco,v and Reportjpg Systems . 

At the end of each search, an audit Is completed to ensure that ell of the documents ere saved 
onto our file server. All records will be preserved for at least five years. The system is backed up 
nightly. 

,iii. Operating Problems 

Academic Search has not experienced any operating problems in the last five years. We 
CQhliriue to add new senior consultants such as Dr. Pippins and Ms. Nolde to add to the aeplh · 
of the talent we have; As you can see fr.om our revenue n!lmbers, we continue to increase our 
search load. At the end of each search, we conduct a client survey. That survey shows that 
100% of the respondents would recommend Academic Search to a colleague or use our 
services again. 

1:_d Financial Viapility 

i. Financial Statements 

We consider the following Information proprietary and confidential. We request written 
notification prior to releasing this section. 

ACADEMIC.1SEARCH 
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Entire Report Confiden.tial/Proprietary and 
Not for Public Release 

AMERICAN ACAPEMIC 
LEADERSHIP INS'ltrUTE; INC. 

AND AFFILIATE 

Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Yems Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 

and 
Report Thereon 
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LANE & COMPANY 
CERTt'P'O:O PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

Independent Auditor"s Report 

To the Bo!lld of Directors of the 
American Academic Leadership Institute, Inc. and Affiliate 

We have audited the RCCO!DPan)'ll!g collliolidated financial statements of the American 
Academic Leadership Institute, Inc. and Affiliate (the Onmnization), which comprise the 
statements of financial position as of June 30, 2016 and 2<T1S1 and the related consolidated 
statements of activities and cash flows for the years then endea, and the related notes to the 
financial statements. 

Management's Respon.sibUity for the Financial Statements 

Management is respOllSlble for the preparation and fair presentation of these collliolidated 
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles genei;illy accepted in the United 
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's ResponsibUity 

· Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 1hese consolidated financial statements based 
on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perfonn the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated filllincial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's iudament, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of .the 
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation o( 
the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivenells of the entity's 
intemal control. Accordingly, we extiress no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting polictes used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements .. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion. · 

.J. 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the consolidated fimmcial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of the Organization as ofJuue 30, 2016 and 2015, and the 
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matter 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of fonning an opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements as a whole. The consolidating schedule of financial position for the year 
ended June 30, 2016, and the related consolidating schedules of activities end cash flows for the 
year then ended, ou pages 13 to 15, are presented forpmposes of additional analysis and are not a 
required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsi'bility of 
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been su~ected 
to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the consolidated financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such infonnation directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statemenl!i or to 
the consolidated financial statements themselves, end other additional procedures in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 
infonnation is fuirly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial 
statements taken as a whole. 

Washington, D.C., USA 
January 7, 2017 
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AMERICAN ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP INSTITUTE, INC. AND AFFILlATE 
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position 

June 30, 2016 and 2015 

W§. 
ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,102,446 
Accounts receivable 600,135 
Prepaid expenses and deposits 35,263 

Total current assets 1,738,544 

Investments 2,950,630 

Furniture & equipment 298,645 
Leasehold improvements 

Total property & equipment 298,645 
Accumulated depreciation (289,026) 
Property & equipment, net . 9,619 

Total assets $ 4,698,793 

LIABJLITIBS, NET ASSETS AND STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY 

Accounts payable.and accrued expenses $ 309,830 
Deferred revenue 407,204 
Other liabilities 62,013 
Total current liabilities 779047 

Net assets, unrestricted 3,919,746 

Total liabilities, net assets and stockholder's equity $ 4,698?93 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of those financial staiements. 
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$ 1,247,330 
328,772 
94,828 

1,670,930 

2,560,932 

298,645 
101,108 
399,753 

(378,250) 
21,503 

$ · 4,253,365 

$ 200,021 
280,950 

10,695 
491,666 

3,761,699 

$ 4~53,36S 
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AMERICAN ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP INSTITUTE, INC. AND AFFIUATE 
Coll8olidated Statement. of Activities 

For1he Years Ended11111C 30, 2016and2015 

291g 2015 
REVENUE 

Client fees $ 4,725,251 $ 4,232,567 
Client reimbursements 1,087,317 947,666 
Dividends and intereot 89,427 SS,198 
Other 2047 3111 

Total operatina r6Vellue 5,904,042 5~8,542 

OPERATING EXPENSES 

Coneulting lees 1,456,949 1,206,569 
SalarlH 1,371,740 1,307,566 
Reimbursement~ client expenses 1,087,317 947,666 
Research 120,873 93,717 
Employee benefit. 311,727 312,689 
Prollfam antivities oxpen•o 200,000 200,000 
Prolilssional foes 78,276 82,867 
Meetings expense 91,255 IOl,905 
Rent 144,097 196,424 
Advertising & promodons 128,655 101,745 
Peyroll taxes 90,380 93,687 
Depreolalion expense 11,884 13,271 
Technology . 78,803 89,786 
Travel 57,662 61,491 
Telephone 3,017 IS,414 
Duos & sub,oription, 3,347 16,885 
Insurance 24,725 31,367 
Postago & delivery 12,819 10,947 
SuppH .. 11,544 9,067 
Equipment '"'1tal 2,425 1,964 
Printing 16,648 10,921 
Bank service charges 2,195 2,780 
Interest apense 43 265 
·Repairs & maintenance 106 2.466 
Miscellaneous 20773 4538 

Total operating expenses S;J.27,'J,§_O 1,915,991 

Change in net aSfiets from operations 576,782 322,545 

Other changes 
Provision for income taxes (349,703) (269,642) 
Roali2ed and unrealized gains/(Ios,es) on investments (69.032) (14,671) 

Change in net assets 158,047 38,232 

Net assets, Beginning of Year 3,761,699 3,723,467 

Not usots, End of Year $ 3,919,746 $ 3,761,699 

The accompan)'ing notes man integral 
part ofthue fiDancial &tl.tements. 
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Contract No. 22-CC-011 

AMERICAN ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP INSTITUTE, INC. AND AFFILIATE 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 

Cash flows :from operating activities 
Change in net assets $ 

Adj11Stments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash 
provided by/( used in) operating activities 

Depreciation expense 
Realized and unrealized (gains)/losses on investments 

Changes in assets and liabilities 
Accounts receivable 
Prepaid expenses and deposits 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Deferred ievenue 
Other liabilities 

Net cash flows provided by/(used in) operating activities 

Cash flows provided by/(used in} investing activities 
Purchase of marlcetable securities 
Proceeds from the ssle of marketable securities 
Purchases of property and equipment 

Net cash flows provided by/(used in) investing activities 

Change in cash and cash equivslents 

Cash and equivalents, Beginning of Year 

Cash and equivalents, End of Year $ 

Supplemental Disclosure: 
Cash paid during the year fur: 

Income Taxes $ 
Interest $ 

The accompanying notes ere an integral 

part of those financial statements . 
. • 5. 

2016 

158,047 

11,884 
69,032 

(263,234) 
58,865 

101,680 
126,254 
51,318 

313,845 

(569,712) 
110,982 

(4S8,730l 

(144,884) 

1,247,330 

l,102z446 

372,415 
43 

2015 

$ 38,232 

13,272 
14,671 

27,867 
24,181 
(16,346) 
66,683 

(100,840) 

67,720 

(68,297} 
213,256 

(2,273) 

142,686 

210,406 

1,036,924 

$ 1,247,330 

$ 2161770 
$ 265 
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AMERICAN ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP INSTITUTE, lNC, AND AFFILIATE 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

June 30, 2016 and 2015 

1. Organization 

The American Academic Leadership Institute, Inc. (AALI) is a non-profit organization 
whose purposes include, but are not limited to: (I) identification and development of acadcmic 
leadership talent; (2) provision of prognuns, initiatives and assistance for academic leaders in 
various administrative positions enabling them to be succesaful in their roles and to advance the 
institutions they serve; and, (3) consultation 10 academic leaders and boards of trustees 
concerning the issues facing higher education and its governance. 

Academic Search, Inc. (AS, Inc.) is AALI's wholly owned, for-profit subsidiary. AS, 
Inc.' s purpose is to provide assistance to academic institutions during periods of administrative 
leadership transition, Academic Search, Inc. was incorporated in Delaware on June 12, 2006 
and began operations on July 1, 2006. 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Principles of Consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance wi1h 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and, as a result, all 
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 

Basis of Accounting 

AALI and AS, Inc. prepare their consolidated financial statements on the accrual basis 
of accounting. Consequently, revenue is recognized when earned and expenses when 1he 
obligations are incurred. 

Estimates 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States ·of America requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions 1hat affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities.at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses· during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

-6-
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AMERICAN ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP INSTITUTE, INC. AND AFFILIATE 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

June 30, 2016 and 2015 

2. Swmnary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Income Tax Status · 

AALiis a non-profit organizatiou incOiporated in Washington, D.C. and is exempt from 
Federal income taxes under Section 50l(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. AALI is an IRS 
Code Section 509(a)(3) supporting organization, supporting the American Association of State 
Colleges and Universities and the Council of Independent Colleges. Their status was 
confirmed by a letter from the Internal Revenue Service dated January 18, 2008. Management 
annually reviews its tax positions and has determined that there are no material uncertain tax 
positions that require recognition on the financial statements. 

AS, Inc. is a for-profit organization incorporated in Delaware and is subject to Federal 
and State income taxes. 

Cash Equivalents 

For fmancial statement purposes AALI and AS, Inc. consider all highly liquid 
investments with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalellts 
except for money market funds held in the invesunent accounts. Cash in excess of Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insured limits total $587,593 and $895,296 as of June 

. 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. 

Accounts Receivable 

Accounts receivable consists of search fees that are billed on a contractually agreed 
upon basis. AALI and AS, Inc. employ the direct charge-off inethod for uncollectible accounts. 
Amounts over 90 days old are assessed fur collectability and written off if detennined 
uncollectible. Accordingly, no provision for doubtful accounts has been made in the 
accompanying consolidated statement of financial position. Management believes that all 
receivables are fully collectible. 

Investments are recorded at eslimated fair value based on quoted prices provided by the 
investment custodian. Investment income or loss is included in the consolidated statement of 
activities as increases or decreases in net assets. 

-7-
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AMERICAN ACADEMIC LEADERSHil' INSTITUTE, INC. AND AFFILIATE 
Notes to Consolidated Finmcial Statements 

June 30, 2016 and 2015 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies ( continued) 

Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment with an original acquisition cost of$500 or more are recorded 
at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is calculated by the s1raight-line method 
over thre.e to seven year estimated useful lives. Leasehold improvements are amortized over 
the shorter of the office lease period or the expected life. Upon disposal of depreciable assets, 
the cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the accounts, and the 
resulting gain or loss on disposal is reccrded. Maintenance and repairs are expensed in the year 
incurred. 

Net Assets 

AALl's net assets are classified in10 groups based on the existence or absence of donor · 
imposed restrictions. As of June 30, 2016 and 2015, there are no donor imposed restrictions 
and, accordingly, all net assets are classified as umestricted and are available for use in the 

· general operations of AALI. 

Revenue 

Revenue is comprised of search fees, reimbursable expelllles, and investment inccme 
and is recorded as unrestricted revenue, AS, Inc. receives revenue from contractually agreed 
upon fees and the reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses from 1he colleges and universities. 

Deferred Revenue 

Income from search fees is deferred and recognized over the periods 10 which it relates. 

Advertising Expense 

Advertising expense consists of ads placed in publications and is expensed as incurred. 

Fungional Allocation of Expenses 

AALI has allocated its indirect expenses 10 the program and supporting services 
benefited on the basis of salaries. For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, AALI had 
$575,328 and $507,280 of expenses, respectively, and classified $472,497 and $430,799 as 
program expenses and $102,831 and $76,481 as general and administrative, respectively. 

-8-



Contract No. 22-cc-011 

AMERICAN ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP INSTITUTE, INC. AND AFFILIATE 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemc;nts 

June 30, 2016 and 2015 

3. Investments 

Investments consisted of the following at June 30: 

2016 ~ 

Cos Markel Coat Market 

Money Markel Funds $ 143,587 $ 143,587 $ 47,043 $ 47,043 
Mutual Funds - Equities 928,836 932,368 753,885 811,902 
Mutual Fwtds -Fixed Income 1,037,%8 1,014,342 954,682 9211,955 
Mutual Funds -Mixed Assets 194,881 176,715 166,912 156,450 
Mulual Funds -Other 673,112 683,618 . 612,230 616,582 

Total $ 22ZIJ~ I ~~D 1zag S i~4 :z:!2 s 2 ~~u ~32 

Investment income consisted of the following for the years ended June 30: 

2016 2015 

Interest and dividends $ 89,427 $ 55,198 
Realized gainB/(losses) on investments (14,500) 63,1S5 
Unrealized losses on investments (54,532) (77,826) 

Total $ ~0,395 li !10,522 

AALI invests in vllrious invesbnent securities. Investment securities are exposed to 
risks such as interest rates, market, and credit risks. Recent market conditions have resulted in 
an unusually high degree of volatility and increased the risks of certain investments held by 
AALI which could impact the value of investments after the date of these financial statements. 

AALI has implemented Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting 
Standards Codification (ASC) 820, Fair Value Measmernents and Disclosures. 
Implementation did not affect AALl's change in net assets or sta1ement of financial position 
and had no effect on AALl's existing fair-value measurement practices. However, ASC 820 
requires disclosure of a fair-value hierarchy of inputs AALI uses to value an asset or liability. 
The three levels of the fair-value hierarchy are described as follows: 

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities; 

Level 2: Inputs other than Level 1 inputs that are directly or indirectly observable in the 
marke1place; 

.9. 
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Contract No. 22-CC-011 

AMERICAN ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP INSTITUTE, INC. AND AFFILIATE 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

June 30, 2016 and201S 

Investments (continued) 

Level 3: Unobservable inputs which reflect the reporting entity's assessment of the ass11D1ptions 
that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability including assumptiDDB about 
risk such as bid/ask spreads and liquidity discounts. 

Invesbnents, recorded at fitlr value, consist of the following at June 30: 

Lml.l ~ LmLl. Total 

2015 

Money Market Funds $ 143,587 $ $ $ 143,587 
Mutual Funds • Eljllities 932,368 932,368 
Mutual Funds • Fixed Income 1,014,342 1,014,342 
Mutual Funds • Mixed Assets 176,715 176,715 
Mutual Funds - O1hor 683,618 6SlJilS 
Totals $ 2959§30 $ $ $ 2 950630 

1m!.1. ~ Level 3 Total 

2015 

Money Market Funds $ 47,043 $ $ $ 47,043 
Mutual Funds - Eljllitics 811,902 811,902 
Mutual Funds - Fixed htcomc 928,955 928,955 
Mutual Funds • Mixed Assets 156,450 156,450 
Mutllal Ftmds - Other 616.582 616.582 
Totals $ 2,560 9:,2 $ $ $ 2.560932 

Inves1ment inAffiliate 

AALI records its investment in AS, Inc. on the cash basis, the balance of which is 
$81,790 at June 30, 2016 and 2015. The investment is recorded by AS, Inc. as common stock 
and paid-in capital. For consclidation purposes, the investment in affiliate, common stock and 
paid-in capital between both entities are eliminat.ed. 

-10-
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AMERICAN ACADEMIC LEADERSIIlP INSTITUTE, INC. AND AFFILIATE 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

June 30, 2016 and 2015 

5. Annuity Plan 

AS, Inc. and AALI have a defined contribution lllllluity plan for all eligible employees. 
The Organizations contribute 12% of each employee's salary to the annuity. Accordingly, staff 
members may contribute to a supplemental retirement lllllluity within Intemal Revenue Service 
limits. Plan expenses for the years ended June 30, 2016 and2015 were$159,372 and$158,l 70, 
respectively. 

6. Commitments 

The Organization leases office space and equipment. In 2015, the Organization signed 
a lease for office space in Washington, DC, through July 31, 2026. Approximate future 
miainmro lease payments under the current leases are as follows: 

Year Ending June 30: 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 

Thereafter 

Total 

~ 

115,013 
117,889 
120,836 
123,857 
126,953 

671.748 

$1,276,297 

Equipment 

2,373 

$ 2,373 

Rent expense for the years ended June 30, 2016 and2015 was $124,222 and $179,523, 
respectively. Equipment rental expense for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 was $2,425 
and $1,964, respectively. 

7. Program Activities Expense 

AALI granted $100,000 to each of its supported organizations in both 2016 and 2015. 

-11-
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AMERICAN ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP INSTITUTE, INC. AND AFFILIATE 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Jwie 30, 2016 and 2015 

Income Taxes 

AS, Inc. has recognized a deferred tax liability of$2,097 and $5,310 at June 30, 2016 
and 2015, respectively. The deferred tax liability is determined based on timing differences 
between the recognition of depreciation expense fur income tu J)Wl)Oses and those.recognized 
Wider generally accepted accounting principles. The following is a summary of the provision 
for income taxes for AS, Inc.: 

Current 
Deferred 

AS, Inc. provision for income taxes 

Subsequent Event 

$ 352,916 
(3,213) 

$ 349.703 

$ 272,394 
(2.752} 

$ 269.642 

In prepruing these financial statements, the Organization has evaluated events and 
transactions for potential recognition or <lisclosw-e through January 7, 2017, the date the 
financial statements were available to be issued. There were no additional events or 
transactions that were <liscovered dw-ing the evaluation that required further disclosure. 

-12-
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Contract No. 22-CC-011 

AMERICAN ACADEMJC LllADERSHIP INSTITUTE, INC. AND AFFILIATE 
Consolidating Schedule of Financial Position 

Juno 30, 2016 
(With Consolidated Totals for June 30, 2015) 

American 
Academic 
Leadership Acadmnic CoDSOUdated Totals 

Institute Soarcb, Inc. 

\SSETS 

C"h and equivalents $ 2<i4,520 $ 837,926 
Accounts reccivab1e 20,500 579,635 
Prepaid expenses and deposits 35,963 

Total current assets 285,020 1,453,524 

InveatmentB 2,950,630 
lnvCBtm.ent in affiliate 81,790 

Total 3,032,420 

Furniture & equipment 31,240 . 267,405 
Leasehold improvements 

Total property & eguipment 31,240 267,405 
Accumulated depreciation (31J40) (257,786) 

Property & equipmen~ net 9,619 

rota1 aesets $ 3,317,440 $ 1,463.143 

LIABILITIES, NET ASSETS AND STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY 

\ocounto payable and accrued expenses 
Jeferred revenue 
Jther liabilities 

Total cummt Ii,bilitica 

:mnmon stodc, 100 shEll'es 
.dditiona! paid-In capital 
·et a"'1,, unroetricted/Acoumulated surplus 

otal net assets and ,wokholder's equity 

eta! liabilities, net assets and mcldmlder's equity 

$ 104,908 $ 204,922 
132,204 275,000 

62,013 
237.112 541,935 

I 
81,789 

3,080,328 839,418 
3,080,328 921,208 

$ 3~17,440 $ 1.463,143 

Refer to tho Audi tots Report 
-13-

Eliminations ~ ~ 

$ $ 1,102,446 s 1,247,330 
600,135 328,772 
35,963 94,!!28 

1,738.544 1,670,930 

2,950,630 2,560,932 
(81,790) 

(81,790) 2,950,630 2,560.932 

2!111,645 298,645 
101,!08 

2!111,645 399,753 
(289.026) !37!,250) 

9.619 21,503 

$ (81,790) $ 4,698.793 s 4,253.365 

s s 309,130 s 200,021 
407,204 280,950 
6~013 10,695 

779.047 491.666 

(1) 
(81,789) 

3,!19,746 3.761,!!99 
(81,790) 3,919.746 3.76lz!!99 

$ (81.790) ! 4,69§,793 ! 412~65 
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Contract No. 22-CC,011 

AMERICAN ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP INSTITUTI!, lNC, AND AFFILIATE 
Consolidating Schcdufo of Activities 
For tho Year Ended June 30, 2016 

(With Consvlidated Totals fortbo Year Emlod Juno 30, 2015) 

American 
Academic 
Loadoi:,hip Academic Cnn,olldated Tomll 

lllsUtute Search1 lnc. Eliminations 2016 ~ 
REVENUE 

Clfentfe8' $ 108,7'! S 4,616,SOO $ 849725,251 $4,232,567 
Client .rel.mlrur.senwds 1,087,317 1,087,317 947,666 
Dividends end inter611t 758,729 (669,302) 89,427 55,198 
Other 2,037 10 ~047 3,111 

Tola! opemtlngrevenuo 869,517 S,7031827 (669,302) 5.98',042 5.238.542 

OPERATING EXPENSES 

Consulting fees 1,456,949 l,4!6,949 1,206,569 
Salaries 147,677 1,224,063 1,371,740 11307,St'iG 
Reimbursement - client expenses 1,087,317 1,087,317 947,666 
RoaOlllllh 120,873 120,873 93,717 
Employee benefits 35,152 216,S?S 311,727 312,6119 
Program activities expense 200,000 200,0D0 200,000 
Pmro,sionai li:es 28,772 49,S04 78,276 82,867 
Meedogs-nse 43,778 . 47,477 !11,255 101,905 
Root 144,097 . 144,007 196,424 
Adv.rtising & promotions 128,655 128,655 101,745 
PayroU taxes 10,667 79,713 !lll,380 93,687 
Depreciation expense 1,512 10,372 11,884 13,271 
Tech.nology 6,908 71,895 78,1113 89,786 
Travel 36,710 20,952 57,662 61,491 
Telephone 3,017 3,017 15,414 
Dues & subsoriptfonS 3,347 3,347 16,811!1 
Insurance 7,811 16,914 24,725 31,3(17 
Postaae & dolivery 75 12,744 12,819 10,947 
Suppli,. 431 11,113 11,544 !l,067 
Equipmoot rental 2,425 2,425 1,964 
Printing 8,392 8,256 16,648 10,921 
Bank service eharges 2,436 . (241) 2,195 2,7118 
hdcrest csxpl:lllle 43 43 265 
Repairs & maintenance 106 ltlfi 2.466 
Miscellaneous 2!!,773 20,m 4,538 

Tolul opomtiog 'XJlllll"'" 530,321 4,796,939 !,327~68 :!,915,!!!! 

Chani;e in net asseWaccumufated surphu 
ftom QPeJatioJll 339,196 906,888 (669,302) 576,782 »2,545 

Olhor,benges 
Provision for income taxes (349,703) (349,703) (269,642) 
lloali2od """ \lm'oalizod galnsl(losm) on 
fuvestmot;,.ts (69,032) [69,032) (14,671) 

Change in net assets/accumulated swplus 270,164 557,185 (669,302) 158,047 38,232 

Less: Dividend payments 669,302 (669,302) 

Ne1 Assets, Bcgilllling of Year 2,810,164 951,535 31761.69!) 3,723,467 

Net ASBets, lll1d of Year $3,080,328 $ 839,418 $ Sl.9191746 53,761,699 

Ref or to the Auditors llepon 
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AMERJCAN ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP INSTITUTE, INC. AND AFFILIATE 
Consolidating Schedule of Cash Flows 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 
(With Con,olidated Totals for the Year Ended Juno 30, 2015) 

American 
Academic 
Leadership Academic Conanlidated Totals 

.IJJBlitute Search, .IJJc. 

Cash flows from operating activitio, 
Change i11 net assolS $ 
Adjustmoclll to reconcile change in net a,iet,, to 

net cash (usod in)lprovided by operating activities 

270,164 $ 557,185 

Depreciation expense 1,512 10,372 
Realized and unrealized losses on investments 69,032 

Changes in es,0111 and liabilities 
Ac:counli receivable (435) (262,799) 
Prepaid expenses and deposits 2,090 56,775 
Account, payable and accrued expanses 96,118 5,562 
Deferred revenue 73,254 53,000 
Other liabilities 51,318 

Net cash (used in)/providad by operating activities 511,735 471,413 

Cash flows provided by/(used In) Investing activitie, 
Pw-chas:e of marketable securities (569,712) 
Proceeds ftom the s,Je ofmarlcetabie securities 110,982 
Purebasca of property end equipmeot 

Net cash flows provided by/(used in) investing activitie, (458,730) 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Dividend paymenlB {669,302) 

Change in cash and cesh equivalents 53,005 (197,889) 

c,.h and equivalents, Beginning of Yoar 211,515 1.035,815 

Cash end equivelents - End ofY ear $ 264,520 $ 837,926 

Refer to the Auditor's Repon 
-IS-

Eliminations afil ~ 

$ (669,302) $ ISB,047 $ 38,232 

11,884 13,272 
69,032 14,671 

(2113,234) 27~67 
58,865 24,181 

101,680 (M,346) 
126,254. 66,6113 
9~18 (100,!!40) 

(669,302) 313,845 67,720 

(569,712) (118,297) 
110,982 213,256 

~.273) 
(458.730) 142,616 

669,302 ,;,, 

(144,184) 210,406 

1.247.330 l,G.16,!124 

S 1,102,446 S 11247~30 
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ii. Indebtedness to county and/or CoUege 

Academic Search has no Indebtedness to the County and/or College. We have no oulstancJlng 
liens to any party. 

iii. Liens and Litigation 

We are not a party to any ligation. 

ACADEMIC,SEARCH 
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2.a Proposed Services/Pr9ducts 

i. Scope of Work 
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Our standard search process is built upon years of experience, and is comprised of the 
following six steps, which we will tailor to the specific needs, goals, and processes of 
Suffolk County Community College. 

1) Organization of the Search: A key determinant of a successful search is the 
thoughtful ingani:i:ation of the search process. Academic Search works side-by-side wHh 

. the college to set specific goals and develop operating guidelines to help structure the 
overall process. . 

2) Agalvsla of Institutional Needs: Eech search begins with a thorough analysis of the 
institution and the position requirements. During this analysis, the senior consultant 
spends extensive time researching the distinctive history, cutture, strengths, and 
challenges of the institution and the academic or administrative untt. The senior 
consultant meets with key stakeholders, Including-as applicable- trustees, president, 
provost, faculty, students, staff, alumni, and community leaders, listening carefully to 
their perspectives and needs. Once this information has been gathered during the pre­
search campus visit, the senior consultant will work quickly to develop a draft position 
profile, advertisement, and advertising plan for the search, which will be used in 
recrulllng a diverse and qualified pool of applicants. Once drafted, these documents will 
be shared for review with the Search Committee and hiring authority. The senior 
consultant wlll make any desired edits. The advertisement and profile are typically 
posted to Academic Search's website and with Committee-approved print and/or online 
publications within a couple of weeks of the pre-search visit. 

31 Racrujtment of strong .and Inclusive candidate Pool: The third step is to build a 
candidate pool crafted for the specific search end preferred qualifications of the position. 
We cast a wide net to find the very best candidates locally, nationally, and globally, and 
activate extensive networks to identify a broad and diverse group of candidates with the 
desired attributes and experience. The senior consultant will engage In active 
recruitment of potential candidates through their personal networks and other outreach, 
by email, phone, and video or In-parson meetings as needed. Applications are sent 
directly to Academic Search and kept on a secure website, to which only the Search 
COmmittea and the senior consultant have access. 

41 Candidate Evaiuatlon and Salecllon: The pace of the search escalates as the 
COmmillae begl!'IB to reaci and evaluate applications in order to identify semifinalist 
candidates. The senior consultant will also offer to conduct a credential review exercise 
with the Search Committee. The purpose of this review is to prepare the Committe.e to 
evaluate applications using the position criteria previously identified. At this time, the 
Committee will also be Introduced to the secure website. The site is password-protected 
lo ensure confidentiality and houses all candidate application materials. A full-time 
director of technology services is available to respond to questions and trouble.shoot 
any technology Issues throughout the search. 

ACADEMIC~SEARCH 
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The senior consullant will retum for the next meeting, at which the Search Committee 
will evaluate all applications, assessing the materials submitted by candidates in light of 
the desired capepllities outlined in the institutional profile. Al this time, the senior 
consultant will also assist the Search Committee In narrowing down the applicant pool to 
those most qualified for first-round Interviews, referred to as semifinalist Interviews and 
often held at a confidential, neutral site off campus. Calls to on-11s1 references may be 
made at this stage or later in the process. · 

Sl lntervi11WS and Vatting .of Candidates f Part 1- Semifinalist tntervlpwl}: Once the 
semifinalists have been chosen, interviews are scheduled. Semifinalist interviews can be 
conducted in person or through videoconferencing, according to the wtshes of the 
Search Committee. In the event the committee selects a video lntetvlew, Academic 
Search will provide the campus wHh logistical support for video conferencing platforms. 
Academic Search staff schedules.the Interviews and the senior consuHant is present to 
assist the committee throughout the process. 

Interviews and Vetting of Candidates (Part 2-Campus Visit&): Following the first­
round interviews and the selection of finalists by the Committee, the senior consultant 
conducts background checks, Including off-list reference cslls on the finalists as well as 
degree verifications. All local arrangements for campus visits by finalists would be made 
by Suffolk County community College, with assistance from Academic Search. 

61 Facilitation of the Appointment and Launch: Upori the selection of finalists, the. 
senior consultant continues to facilitate the final recruHment, selection and appointment 
process, assisting the Search Committee as needed, helping to announce the 
appointment publicly, as well as assisting with transition activities for the designated 
appointee. 

II. Two Way Communication 

In all of our searches, Iha senior consultant remains the point of contact for the search. 
The various stakeholders can reach out to the senior consultant at any time to discuss 
the search. There are at least four on campus meetings that the senior consultant 
attends and s/he Is available via video conference, If needed. Many of our search chairs 
set up a weekly call with the senior consultant 

iii. Specjfjc/Speclal Qualifications 

Dr. Robinson Pippins and Or. Israel have significant campus experience. They each 
understand the unlquf! needs of a community college campus. They are well suited to be 
available and are a sustained resource for each search. Ms. Nolde has extensive search 
experience with community colleges and also Is prepared to be available .to the campus 
community as needed. · · 

Iv. Approach 

The senior consultant will facilitate each step of the process as oullined above. The work 
Is coordinated between the senior consultant and their assigned associate consultant. 
During the initial phases of the search, a time-line will be presented and approved by the 
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committee. This will ensure that we meet the deadlines throughout the search. Any· 
changes or deviations will be discussed thoroughly with the ·search chair and hiring 
authority. 

v. Ilroe-Une 

Based on the process oulllned above, we suggest the following dates, marked In red, 
Which assumes the new Executive Campus Dean Is to be appointed quickly. These 
dates can certainly be modified after consultation with the College and the Search 
Committee, 

1) Organization of the Search: Aprll 2017 
2) Analysis of Institutional Needs: Aprll 2017 
3) Recruitment of Strong and Inclusive Candidate Pool: May 2017 
4) Candidate Evalul!tion and Selection: Late-May 2017 
5a) Interviews and Vetting of Candidates (Semifinalist Interviews): Early-June 2017 
5b) Interviews and Vetting of Candidates (campus Visits): Lste June 2017 
6) Facilitation of the Appointment: July 2017 

For a typical search, the following timeline would be used: 

1) Organization of the Search: Month 1 
2) Analysis of Institutional Needs: Month 1 
3) Recruitment of Strong and Inclusive candidate Pool: Month 2 
4) Candidate Evaluation and Selection: Early Month 4 
5a) Interviews anq Vetting of Candidates (Semlflnallst Interviews}: Mid-Month 4 
5b) Interviews and Vetting of Candidates (Campus Visits), Early Month 5 
6) Facllltatlon of the Appointment: Late Month 5 

2 .b. Anticipated Issues and Resolutions 

46 

Most of our searches are conducted without significant challenges or Issues. A rushed time-line 
is one of the anticipated iss11es. Wa work as quickly and diligenily as we can to make sure all of 
the mile markers are met Open communication 111 key to this Issue. 
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Cost Proposal 

We wlll not be requesting any changes to the model agreement. 

The professional fee for each position shall be 30% of the first-year compensation for the 
position. Our minimum search fee Is $40,000. If more than one search Is conducted at 
the same lime and on the same timellne, the fee shall be 25% for the second search 
with a minimum search fee of $35,000. 

We do not cltarga an administrative fee. 

The payments are contingent upon oompletion of each of the following milestones: . 
• 1 /3 of the professional fee when the recruiting begins 
• 1 /3 of the professional fee when the semi-finalist candidates are identified 
• 1/3 of the professional fee when the search has concluded. 

Our fee covers all expenses other than discretionary costs for iravel (both consultant and 
candidate}, aqvertising, and background checks. The above costs are directly billed lo 
the client. During the pre-search visit, the senior consultant will work with the Search 
Committee to n;iview costs and cost-saving measures. The framework for travel and 
advertising expenses is reviewed and approved by the responsible Suffolk County 
Community College official. After finalist candidates are chosen, Academic Search will 
conduct degree verifications and use a third-party company for background checks, If 
requested. 

Our team does not bill on an hourly rate or based on tasks. Our professional fee is the only fee 
we charge. 

A detailed estimation of the reimbursable costs Is listed below. 

Estlmatad relmbursabla saarclwelated upanses: 
Consultant Travel (1 consultants, assuming 3-4 visits to campus) 
Advertising Estimates (includes online only) 
Finalists' !3ackground Checks (3 finalists) 
Total Estiinatad ,telmbursabla Expanses 

$5,000.00 
$2,000.00 
$1,500.00 
$8,500.00 

We do not typically include estimates for candidate travel. This eXpense can vary considerably, 
depending on how many candidates are Invited to samifinalist and campus intervlaws, as weU 
as the distance the candidates must travel. Historically, we have found that $1,000 per 
semifinalist and $2,000 per finalist candidate to be reasonable estimates when trying to · 
determine the travel cost& associated with Interviews. Total travel costs for the entire search can 
be estimated to be between $6,000 and $16,000 for candidate travel. 

The projected advertising budget includes only online advertisements. A significant and robust 
pool of candidates can be attracted using many online ad venues, as Indicated Jn this proposal. 
In addition, much of our top candidate recruitment comes from our firm's own direct outreach, 
which is incfudad in the professioneil fee. If a print ad for The Chronicle of Higher Education is 
desired, it can add. $3,000 • $5,000. The senior CQnsultants and Search Chair(s} will discuss 
whether additional print venues will ba beneficial In this search. 
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Our Guarantee 

Academic Search guarantees our work and process. In the unlikely event that the hiring 
authority is not satisfied with the candidates reoommended or the search is not 
ooncluded for other reasons, Academic Search will oontlnue to be available to conduct 
either an extended search or a second search. The second search must be launched. 
within twelve months of the contract. Moreover, in the very unusual eventthat an 
appointment resulting from our search is terminated for cause within twelve months or 
the appointee leaves within the first twelve months after first reporting to work, Acaclemip 
Search agrees to conduct a second search without any additional profassional fee, as 
long as the search commences within three months after tile position Is vacated. In each 
of the scenarios described above, the only additional charges wlll be related to 
discretionary expenses determined by the search oornmlttee related lo candidate travel, 
consultant travel, advertising, and background cheqks and an administrative fee of 
$10,000.00. 

Non-Sollcltatlon Pledge 

Academic Search prides itself on the high s~ards we obseive for executive search services. Thus, 
an Important part of our approach to each search, during the process and thereafter, Is our pledge to 
uphold and exceed the industry standard for non-solfcltatlon. 

To that end, we will not dlrectiy solicit any employee of any institution for which we are currently 
performing an active search. After the search concludes, we wlll extend that non-solicitation pledge for 
a period of one year. If a member of the campus community receives a direct solicitation from 
Academic Search during e non-solicitation period, it should be Immediately reported to our vice 
president for administration end finance, and appropriate follow-up action will be taken. If a candidate 
or member of.a campus community approaches us during a non-eolloitation period lhrough application 
or nomination, we are ethically bound to respond to them and treat them equally In the search process. 
In addition, the president or chancellor of a client lnstitutloi, may waive this non-solloltatlon pledge as 
to specific employees by oommunlcatlng that waiver to the flrin. 

End of Text for Exhibit G 
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